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Vision To be a world-class electro-acoustic group.

Mission Through continuous improvements in quality® and technology® and
raising the satisfaction level of employees, customers, suppliers and
investors, we enable sustainable growth of the group.

Values Unity and Co-operation; endeavoring joint efforts and wisdom for
achieving our goals.

Commitment and Mutual Benefits; making continuous and steady
development.

Innovation and Progress; sharing the outstanding achievements.

From Society and for Society; fulfilling social obligations.

Remark

® Quality - Product, Service and Management;
@ Technology - Development and Production
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Financial Summary

A I

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BB - BB E)

The following is a summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position of Fujikon Industrial

NTRELREXRERARAR(TARA]) RE
MEARZGAEZEREREGEMBHRARKRZ

Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries: BE
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income #HLREZHNWREHER

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
Revenue A 1,223,641 913,229 1,264,996 1,616,485 1,678,402
Cost of sales 5 AR (1,039,813) (729,664) (1,009,398) (1,250,782) (1,297,880)
Gross profit EF 183,828 183,565 255,598 365703 380,522

Other gains/(losses) — net Hp gz,
(E518) — 1,093 74 10,664 (21,346) 1,962
Distribution and selling expenses 558 R SHE X (26,724)  (19,046)  (19,205)  (26,096)  (27,418)
General and administrative expenses —fR R ITE X HH (115,983) (102,753) (137,413) (148,018) (143,252)
Operating profit 48 5 | 42,214 61,840 109,644 170,243 211,814
Finance income BME WA 3,048 1,481 7,710 8,693 3,133
Finance costs A KK (3,409) (1,067) (3,440) (3,050) (5,975)
Profit before income tax %R P45 351 A g A 41,853 62,254 113,914 175,886 208,972
Income tax expenses FrisHix H (6,496) (7,260)  (15,773)  (24,593)  (33,620)
Profit for the year NEFE i A 35,357 54,994 98,141 151,293 175,352

Attributable to: BB

Equity holders of the Company RARRIERE A 30,008 51,142 91,296 138,226 159,487
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 5,349 3,852 6,845 13,067 15,865
35,357 54,994 98,141 151,293 175,352
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Financial Summary
W %tk 22
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BIBEHBE - UBRHE)
Consolidated statement of financial position GmEMBERREK
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(gE7)) (KE3)) (LF7)) (KED))
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB K&HE | 200,146 203,891 212,793 225,870 236,215
Investment properties wEYE 1,890 1,600 4,440 5,220 4,360
Land use rights s {sE R A 10,135 23,090 24,662 10,264 9,648
Non-current deposits JERBIES - - - 14,627 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EEEE 7,741 7,513 2,480 - 3,963
Deferred income tax assets REFMSHEE - - - 17 186
Total non-current assets FRBAERE 2I9:9028 236,094 244,375 255,998 254,372
Current assets MEEE
Inventories VeSS 158,491 104,978 104,376 163,838 221,205
Trade receivables FEUE R 247,453 163,723 165,666 196,512 258,868
Other receivables Hoth B W IE 13,294 24,006 17,070 29,447 34,461
Derivative financial instruments TEERT A 326 171 880 - -
Other financial assets at BAFERABE
fair value through profit or loss K E A BF IS & B 56,883 73,885 8,667 45,369 7,238
Current income tax recoverable Al Y (o] & BRRT 1S R 1,612 720 - - -
Pledged bank/fixed deposits BEMEIT
EHFR - 6,810 - - 2,132
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFLEEY | 352,599 385,407 415,846 325,593 158,310
Total current assets MENEEMRE 830,658 759,700 712,505 760,759 682,214
Current liabilities mEAaE
_ Trade payables e B 134,261 96,786 60,103 139,936 185,280
3 Accruals and EEtER K
S other payables H 8 < 1B 80,164 80,872 98,098 106,406 99,803
S Current income tax liabilities EHFEHAE 19,155 16,776 16,646 22,979 30,776
£ Derivative financial instruments TEEMT A - - - 4,041 1,055
8 Bank borrowings RITEHE 41,469 26,107 16,988 30,416 43,279
£ Total current liabilities mEBBERE 275,049 220,541 191,835 303,778 360,193
O
=
-_E, Net current assets mEEEFE 555,609 539,159 520,670 456,981 322,021
&
£
k]
2 Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 775,521 775,253 765,045 712,979 576,393
z
e
n
3
b
£
c
o
~
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Financial Summary

W Bt =

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BB - BB E)

Consolidated statement of financial position (continved) %% & 81 3 AR R & (#)

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&EY)) HKEFH)) (KEFH)

Non-current liabilities FERBAE
Bank borrowings HITEE - - - 3,185 5,915
Deferred income LA 2,064 1,986 - - -
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMEHBRE 613 1,132 1,892 1,135 1,021
Total non-current liabilities EmBEaERE 2,677 3118 1,892 4320 6,936
Net assets BEFE 772,844 772,135 763,153 708,659 569,457
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable to  S2/B 7R 2 &) IL i
the Company’s equity holders BB AZBRA
K
Share capital & A 41,014 40,639 39,919 38,119 37,732
Other reserves H Ath (4 1 204,000 186,060 177,376 128,334 74,209
Retained earnings REB & F
— Proposed dividends —EEka 20,507 32,803 35,927 39,918 34,121
— Others —HAh 461,784 468,688 465,477 462,131 390,068
727,305 728,190 718,699 668,502 536,130
Non-controlling interests JEAZE 1 A 2 45,539 43,945 44,454 40,157 33,327
Total equity Eama st 772,844 772,135 763,153 708,659 569,457

B4 1102/010C

BETE

ERA =2 R




Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2010/2011

) y

Johnny Yeung % &%

Chairman /%



Chairman’s Statement
BV &

To our shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries ("Fujikon” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2011.

Over the past few years, the global economy endured a number of peaks
and troughs, eventually returning to greater stability in 2010. Amid this
period, the Group proved that it was more than up to the challenges
confronted, demonstrating both stamina and calm. Through hard work
and perseverance from the management team and entire workforce, the
Group returned to a path of growth during the review year.

As a trusted partner of world renowned clients in an ever-changing consumer
electronics industry, we not only strengthened ties with internationally
recognised brands, thus generating a stable source of income, but also
broadened our income streams by forging new relationships. Leveraging
our product research and development prowess and diverse product mix,
we were able to address the needs of both upscale and mass markets
and deliver products ranging from high quality acoustic headphones to
trendy audio accessories with equal success. This flexibility, in addition
to our strong production capacity and reputation for quality, are among
the reasons why the Group achieved more than 30% revenue growth in
the latest financial year.

While we are on the way to recovery, we are tempered by the fact that
such growth was realised amid a sudden surge in material cost as well
as further rise in labour expense — the abruptness of both having directly
impacted on our profits. This again reminds us that we must be extra
vigilant and ready to address concerns that would otherwise undermine
our hard fought gains. Indeed, we must work even harder to improve the
profitability of our business through stringent cost control measures and
effective cost down programmes, as well as other efforts.

Among our objectives in the coming year will include further expansion of
our business by leveraging Fujikon's sound fundamentals. As well, we will
continue to enhance our presence in the audio and multimedia business
segments by providing creative and quality acoustic products that satisfy
the latest market trends. As our technical know-how is one of our main
attributes in attracting and retaining customers, we will bolster this
strength by investing more capital expenditure and manpower in research
and development. Expanding our business with recently secured renowned
clients will also be another ongoing focus as we steer the Group towards
sustainable growth.

BEUBRR
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Chairman'’s Statement

B

Aiming to be a green manufacturer, we will seek progress on enhancing
energy savings. Already, we are leading all staff to turn off electrical
appliances when practicable, and we are exploring ways to cut the energy
consumption of our major manufacturing facilities.

Moving from one reporting year to the next, it would be overly optimistic
to expect challenges to diminish. Rather than flustered by such a prospect,
| trust that through the professionalism and indomitable spirit of our
workforce, we are well prepared to grasp opportunities ahead and prevail
over whatever obstacles may come, achieving stable and sustainable
growth.

Dividends

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK5.0 cents per share which, combined with an interim dividend of
HK3.0 cents and a special interim dividend of HK1.0 cent already paid,
represents an annual payout of HK9.0 cents per share for the year ended
31 March 2011.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend my gratitude
to our business partners, customers and shareholders for their unwavering
support. | would also like to express my appreciation to the management
team and staff for their continuous contributions to the Group's development,
which will undoubtedly be the catalyst for further growth in the years
ahead.

Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 June 2011
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis

L ) i e e A

Business Review

As the effects of the global financial crisis continued to dissipate, demand
for the Group's electro-acoustic products and accessories showed marked
improvement, resulting in revenue growth of 34.0% to HK$1,223.6 million
for the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: HK$913.2 million). Gross profit
rose marginally to HK$183.8 million (2010: HK$183.6 million). However,
profit attributable to equity holders contracted by 41.3% to HK$30.0 million,
down from HK$51.1 million in FY2009/10 as sudden and noticeable rise
in material costs along with increases in labour rates directly impacted
on the Group.

Business Segment Analysis

Headsets and Headphones

Revenue of headsets and headphones continued to represent a principle
source of income, accounting for 59.5% of total revenue (2010: 65.3%).
Specifically, revenue rose by 22.0% to HK$728.1 million (2010: HK$596.7
million) as a number of projects secured during the start of calendar
year 2010 began to roll out gradually during the fiscal year, primarily
for leading audio and multimedia companies from the US, Europe, Japan
and South East Asia. Moreover, an improving global economy and the
Group's ability to nurture and sustain ties with clients further helped
drive revenue growth of premium and mass market products. Having
successfully established relations with new clients, such bonds also had
a positive impact on revenue contributions.

Though the Group was able to realise growth from its segment businesses,
a significant surge in material prices towards the second half year affected
profitability. Compounding matters has been a quick succession of wage
increases imposed by the mainland China government over the past few
years which gave the Group pricing pressure as it could not immediately
transfer costs to the selling price of its products.

Accessories and Components

The accessories and components segment constitute an increasingly
prominent area of activity, now accounting for 40.5% of the Group's
revenue source (2010: 34.7%). While key for promoting vertical integration,
this segment has enjoyed growing external sales from headsets and
headphones customers in recent years and at the latest reporting period
achieved revenue of HK$495.5 million, a substantial year-on-year surge of
56.5% (2010: HK$316.5 million). Among the contributors to such growth
were additional orders for packaging materials and replacement parts
from a prominent audio brand. A more recent customer of the Group
that targets the trendy, youth orientated market segment likewise placed
further orders for electronic audio accessories, contributing to the healthy
revenue increase.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

W B W & oo B

Prospects

As the global economy has moved on from the financial crisis and
consumers have steadily regained confidence, aiding the consumer
electronics market's recovery, the management can take a more optimistic
though still cautious viewpoint towards the Group’s performance in the
coming financial year.

In FY2010/11, rise in consumption spurred demand for raw materials, resulting
in upward cost pressure, which proved to be the most significant factor to
affect the Group's overall financial performance. While stability is expected
to return in the coming months, the Group will remain vigilant, observing
developments and taking prompt action to protect profitability, such as the
introduction of shorter term contracts that facilitate quick adjustment of
terms to meet market conditions. Irrespective, the Group will continue to
actively develop all aspects of operations, including enhancing assembly
related activities to achieve higher productivity. Increasing automation,
where applicable, will also be considered to counter wage hikes.

In moving forward the Group will seek to bolster its audio and multimedia
portfolio in line with growing demand from American, European and Japanese
professional audio brands. Focus will also be placed on developing products
associated with Bluetooth, Noise Cancellation and Wireless technologies.
Having made clear progress in the mass market, here too the Group will
expedite efforts towards developing trendy, highly demanded products.

While management is committed to perpetuating the Group's growth, this
does not preclude its ambition to contribute to society. Efforts include
the introduction of energy saving measures in manufacturing plants
and offices. Similarly, to reduce electricity consumption, the Group has
begun modifying its moulding equipment as they represent the highest
consumers of electricity.

Recognising that development of the Group requires an all-encompassing
approach, the management will duly leverage Fujikon's full arsenal of
strengths. Possessing a wealth of people, sound fundamentals, strong
R&D capability, tight relationship with clients and scalable production
capacity, the Group is confident about its ability to achieve sustainable
growth in the coming year and years to come.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

W B W & oo B

Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained at a strong financial position. Net current assets
as at 31 March 2011 amounted to approximately HK$555.6 million
(2010: HK$539.2 million). The Group's current and quick ratios were
approximately 3.0 times (2010: 3.4 times) and 2.4 times (2010: 3.0 times),
respectively.

The Group had cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits of approximately
HK$352.6 million as at 31 March 2011, representing a decrease of
approximately 10.1% against approximately HK$392.2 million as at 31
March 2010. Approximately 63.3%, 30.1% and 6.4% of the total cash
and cash equivalents and fixed deposits were denominated in US dollars,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, respectively and the remainder in other
currencies. As at 31 March 2011, the Group had aggregated banking
facilities of approximately HK$310.0 million (2010: HK$264.3 million) from
several banks for loans and trade financing, with an unused balance of
approximately HK$268.5 million (2010: HK$238.2 million).

Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2011, the total bank borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$41.5 million (2010: HK$26.1 million), which were
secured short-term bank borrowings, denominated in Renminbi and due
within one year. Approximately HK$43.0 million of certain properties and
land use rights have been pledged for several secured short-term bank
borrowings (2010: HK$42.4 million). The Group's bank borrowings bear
interest rate at 5.5% (2010: 5.3%) per annum.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 March 2011 was approximately 5.7%
(2010: 3.6%), which was measured on the basis of the total bank borrowings
as a percentage of total equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. If the balance of cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2011
was taken into account, the Group was in a net cash position.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China with most
transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The
Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate. The Group entered into foreign currency forward
contracts to manage such exposure.

Bt %5 10 R
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis

OB W & B

Financial Review (Continued)

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2011, the Group employed a total of approximately
7,200 (2010: 5,500) employees. The staff costs (including the directors’
emoluments) accounted for approximately HK$276.8 million (2010:
HK$200.2 million).

The Group has developed its human resources policies and procedures based
on performance and merit. Employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of its salary and bonus system.
Discretionary bonus is linked to the profit performance of the Group as well
as individual performance. Benefits include staff accommodation, medical
schemes, share option scheme, Mandatory Provident Fund for employees
in Hong Kong and state-sponsored retirement plans for employees in
Mainland China. The Group has also developed training programs to its
management and employees to ensure they are properly trained.

Financial Guarantee

As at 31 March 2011, the Company had provided corporate guarantees of
approximately HK$197.0 million (2010: HK$155.7 million) to several banks
to secure banking facilities of its subsidiaries. The facilities utilised by
the subsidiary as at 31 March 2011 were approximately HK$41.5 million
(2010: HK$26.1 million).

14
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Chi Hung, Johnny, aged 66, is a co-founder of the Group. He
has been the Chairman and the executive Director since 2000. Mr. Yeung
is responsible for the overall strategic planning and business development
of the Group. He is instrumental in the formulation and implementation
of the business policies of the Group. Mr. Yeung was elected the Honorary
Fellowship 2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong
Industries, Directors of The Year Awards 2007 (executive Director): Listed
Companies (SEHK — Non Hang Seng Index Constituents) by The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and the Industrial Fellow 2011 of Warwick
University. Mr. Yeung has over forty years of experience in the electronics
and acoustics industry. In addition, Mr. Yeung is the Vice President of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the President Emeritus
of The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries, a Council
Member of the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency Governing Council,
the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Electronics Industries Association and
the Honorary Chairman & the Vice Chairman of Dongguan Electronics
Industries Association, the President of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin Industry
& Commerce Association and a current advisor of 2010/2011 the 43rd and
2011/2012 the 44th Yan Chai Hospital Board Office. Mr. Yeung is the father
of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben, the executive Director of the Company.

Mr. YUEN Yee Sai, Simon, aged 69, is a co-founder of the Group. He has
been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director since 2000. Mr.
Yuen is responsible for the overall strategic planning of production and
operation related affairs of the Group. He was elected the Associateship
2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr.
Yuen has over forty years of experience in the electronics industry and
has in depth knowledge of trading in the PRC. In addition, he is a Vice
Chairman of the Committee of the Association of Foreign Investment
Enterprises of Dongguan City, Honorary Citizen of Dongguan City and
Humen Town. Mr. Yuen is the father of Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman, the
executive Director of the Company.

Mr. CHOW Man Yan, Michael, aged 62, is a co-founder of the Group.
He has been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director of the
Group since 2000. He is responsible for the overall strategic planning
of purchasing related affairs of the Group. Mr. Chow was elected the
Associateship 2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong
Industries. He has over forty years of experience in the electronics and
acoustics industry, especially in production and material management
and inventory control. Mr. Chow is the brother of Ms. Chow Lai Fung, an
executive Director of the Company.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. YUEN Chi King, Wyman, aged 36, is an executive Director. Mr. Yuen
joined the Group in August 2006 and is responsible for overseeing the
implementation of corporate strategy and the financial functions of the
Group. Mr. Yuen graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada with a
Bachelor degree of Commerce and from Saint Louis University, United States
of America with a Master degree of Finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yuen has worked for a few regional financial securities institutions and
was responsible for the provision of corporate finance advisory services.
Mr. Yuen has more than seven years of experience in financial securities
industry and he is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yuen was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the audit committee, the nomination committee
and the remuneration committee of Pak Tak International Limited (a
company listed on the Main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) in
September 2009. Mr. Yuen is the son of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon, the Joint
Deputy Chairman of the Company.

Mr. YEUNG Siu Chung, Ben, aged 35, is an executive Director. In November
2002, Mr. Yeung joined Fujikon Industrial Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company, in which he served in numerous sales and marketing and project
management positions for about four years. Mr. Yeung re-joined the Group
as an executive Director in August 2007 and is responsible for overseeing
the business development functions of the Group. He holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from Yale University in the United States
of America and a Bachelor of Science degree in International Business
from Pepperdine University in the United States of America. Mr. Yeung
has more than ten years of working experience in an engineering and
marketing capacity. In addition, Mr. Yeung is an ex-com member of Group
5, General Committee of Electronic Products of Federation of Hong Kong
Industries (Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council), a member of Youth
Committee of Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association (Hong
Kong), a member (Youth Officer) of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin Industry &
Commerce Association and a current advisor of 2010/2011 the 43rd and
2011/2012 the 44th Yan Chai Hospital Board Office. He is the son of Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, who is the Chairman of the Company.

Ms. CHOW Lai Fung, aged 47, is an executive Director. Ms. Chow joined
the Group in March 2001 and was appointed an executive Director with
effect from 1 August 2007. She is the Financial Controller and the Company
Secretary of the Group. She graduated from the University of Missouri-
Kansas City, United States of America with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Accounting. She has over 15 years of experience in management,
accounting and finance. Ms Chow is a member of the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She is the sister of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, the
Joint Deputy Chairman of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. CHANG Chu Cheng, aged 67, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since March 2000. Dr. Chang was a founder
and the Chairman of Varitronix International Limited for 29 years. He
is presently the Chairman of iView Limited. Dr. Chang remains as the
Honorary Chairman of Varitronix and serves as a Non-executive Director
of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited, both of which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. He gained his doctorate in Solid State Electronics
from the University of Manchester Institute of Science & Technology in
1969 and lectured in physics and electronics at The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Dr. Chang is currently the Honorary Advisor of Hong Kong
Critical Components Manufacturers Association and the Honorary Chairman
of Hong Kong Opto-Mechatronics Industries Association.

Mr. CHE Wai Hang, Allen, aged 43, had been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company for four years since March 2000. On June 2005,
Mr. Che re-joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Che holds a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in
laws from The University of Hong Kong. He was admitted as a solicitor of
the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1993 and also became as a member
of The Law Society of Hong Kong in the same year. Mr. Che has been
practicing as a solicitor in Hong Kong for about 18 years and is currently
a partner of Wong, Hui & Co., Solicitors.

Mr. LEE Yiu Pun, aged 49, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
since June 2005. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor of commerce degree majoring
in accounting and marketing from the University of Calgary, Canada. He
is currently a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Lee worked as the group financial controller of
S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited from 1994 to 1999, the financial controller
of Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited from 1999 to 2000, and deputy
finance director of Henderson China Holdings Limited from 2000 to 2001, all
of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee is currently
the vice president of finance of a private group of companies.

Senior Management
Mr. MAN Yu Ming, aged 71, is the Managing Director of Fujikon Packing
Material Company Limited. He joined the Group in July 1987.

Mr. CHENG Shek Ping, aged 65, is the Managing Director of Fujikon
International Limited. He joined the Group in June 1984.

Mr. CHEUNG Ying Chun, aged 58, is the Managing Director of Fujikon
Precision Metal Products Limited. He joined the Group in September 1988.

Mr. ZHU Jianhuan, aged 51, is the Managing Director of Zhejiang Fousine
Science & Technology Co. Ltd. He joined the Group in May 2000.
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Report of the Directors
HEERE

The directors (the "Directors”) of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) have the pleasure of presenting the annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Principal Activities and Segment Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 10 to the audited financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment information
is set out in note 5 to the audited financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 38 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share and a special interim
dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share were paid during the year. The
Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per
ordinary share which, subject to the approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the "Annual General Meeting”),
will bring the total dividends for the year ended 31 March 2011 to
approximately HK$36,912,000.

Other Reserves

Movements in other reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 21 to the audited financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in notes 19 and 20, respectively, to the audited financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2011, the Company's reserves of approximately HK$138,800,000
(subject to provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended))
and retained earnings of approximately HK$43,152,000 were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-laws
and the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$707,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 6 to the audited financial statements.

Bank Borrowings

Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31 March 2011 are set out in note
17 to the audited financial statements.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 33 to the audited
financial statements.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the Group's financial information for the last five financial
years is set out on pages 3 to 5 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon

Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael
Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman
Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben
Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chang Chu Cheng
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

Pursuant to bye-law 99 of the bye-laws (the “Bye-Laws”) of the Company,
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow
Man Yan, Michael will retire from the office of Directors by rotation at
the Annual General Meeting. Such Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting. All the other
Directors will remain in office.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors have an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or its Associated Corporations

As at 31 March 2011, the Directors and chief executive of the Company
had the following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code"), were as follows:

a) Interests in the Company
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company

or its Associated Corporations (Continued)

b)

Interests in the associated corporation — Acoustic Touch
Limited

Notes:

1.

These Shares were held by Acoustic Touch Limited, which was owned
as to 15 shares (33.33%) by Gentle Smile Development Limited, as to
15 shares (33.33%) by Sky Talent Enterprises Limited, as to 5 shares
(11.11%) by Artbo Industries Group Limited, as to 5 shares (11.11%)
by East Sino Consultants Limited and as to 5 shares (11.11%) by Loyal
Fair Group Limited.

Gentle Smile Development Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Chow
Man Yan, Michael. Sky Talent Enterprises Limited was wholly owned by
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon. Each of East Sino Consultants Limited, Artbo
Industries Group Limited and Loyal Fair Group Limited was beneficially
owned by the Yeung Family Trust, which was a discretionary trust and
the objects of which were the family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

Under the SFO, each of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai,
Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael was deemed to be interested
in all the Shares in which Acoustic Touch Limited was interested.

Share options were granted to the Directors under the share option
schemes of the Company, details of which were separately disclosed
under the paragraph headed ” Directors’ Rights to acquire Shares or
Debentures” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code as at 31 March 2011.
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Information on Share Option Schemes

The Company has adopted share option schemes under which it may grant
options to eligible participants (including executive Directors) to subscribe
for Shares. Details of the schemes are set out in note 20 to the audited
financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Existing Scheme”)
which complied with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and terminated the
share option scheme adopted on 23 March 2000 (the “Old Scheme”). The
options granted under the Old Scheme prior to its termination remain in
full force and effect.

On 7 August 2009, an ordinary resolution was passed for refreshing the
10% limit (the "10% Limit") under the Existing Scheme on the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to
be granted under all the share option schemes of the Company. Following
the refreshment of the 10% Limit, details of the Existing Scheme are as
follows:

1. Purpose of the Existing Scheme

As incentive or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution
to the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the Existing Scheme

Any eligible employee (whether full-time or part-time, including any
executive Director), any non-executive Director, any shareholder, any
supplier and any customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest, and any other party having contribution to the development
of the Group.

3. Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Existing Scheme and percentage to the issued share
capital as at 31 March 2011

39,918,900 shares (approximately 9.7% of the total issued share
capital).

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Existing Scheme

Not exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being in any 12-month period. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit must be separately approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.
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Information on Share Option Schemes (Continued)

5.

24

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

A period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the date of
offer of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors
to the grantee thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the Existing Scheme for the holding of an
option before it can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 on or before the
date of acceptance (which may not be later than 21 days from the
date of offer).

The basis of determining the exercise price
Being determined by the Directors and being not less than the

highest of:

a. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

b.  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

c.  the nominal value of the Shares.

The remaining life of the Existing Scheme

The Existing Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 September 2002 (being the date of fulfilment of
all conditions on the adoption of the Existing Scheme).
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Directors’ Rights to acquire Shares or Debentures

During the year ended 31 March 2011, movements in the share options
granted to and held by the Directors under the share option schemes of
the Company were as follows:

Note:
The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable any of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed in the paragraph
headed "“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the related party
transactions disclosed in note 35 to the audited financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding companies was a party
and in which any of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company

The following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares at 31 March 2011 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary
Shares in issue which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which
have been recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to the
section 336 of the SFO.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. Interests in Shares and underlying Shares stated above represented long
positions.

2. Acoustic Touch Limited was owned as to 15 shares (33.33%) by Gentle Smile
Development Limited, as to 15 shares (33.33%) by Sky Talent Enterprises
Limited, as to 5 shares (11.11%) by Artbo Industries Group Limited, as to 5
shares (11.11%) by East Sino Consultants Limited and as to 5 shares (11.11%)
by Loyal Fair Group Limited.

Gentle Smile Development Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan,
Michael. Sky Talent Enterprises Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee
Sai, Simon. Each of East Sino Consultants Limited, Artbo Industries Group
Limited and Loyal Fair Group Limited was wholly owned by Silverfun Property
(PTC) Ltd, which was in turn wholly owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited.
Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd was the trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was
then beneficially owned by the Yeung Family Trust, a discretionary trust and
the objects of which were the family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.
Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny.

3. Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen is the wife of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.
4. Ms. Leung Woon Yee is the wife of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.
5. Ms. Cai Liting is the wife of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

6. DJE Investment S.A. held 31,932,000 Shares. DJE Investment S.A. was owned
as to approximately 81.0% by Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG, which was in
turn owned as to approximately 68.5% by Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt.

7. These Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which was owned by Mr. David Michael Webb. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. David Michael Webb was deemed to be interested in
all the Shares held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited. Mr. David Michael
Webb had an aggregate interest in 28,784,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there was
no other person who had an interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31
March 2011.
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Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 37% of the Group's total revenue and the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 29% of the Group's total
purchases. The largest customer to the Group accounted for approximately
10% of the Group’s total revenue. None of the Directors, their associates,
or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) of the Company had an interest
in these five largest customers and/or these five largest suppliers.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Certain continuing related party transactions as disclosed in note 35 to
the audited financial statements also constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules, and are required to
be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 25 March 2009, the Group entered into a new master purchase agreement
and a new master supply agreement with The Bright Printing Press and
Paper Products Limited (“Bright Printing”) for a term of three years from
1 April 2009 to 31 March 2012, following the expiration of the master
purchase agreement and master supply agreement dated 26 January 2006.
Pursuant to the master purchase agreement, Bright Printing agreed to
sell, and the Group agreed to purchase, certain printing products during
the term of the agreement. Pursuant to the master supply agreement,
the Group agreed to sell, and Bright Printing agreed to purchase, certain
printed PVC sheets/boxes and certain packaging materials during the term
of the agreement. Details of such new master purchase agreement and
new master supply agreement were set forth in the announcement of the
Company dated 25 March 2009.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

During the year, the Group has purchased printing products from Bright
Printing amounting to approximately HK$608,000 and sold printed PVC
sheets/boxes to Bright Printing amounting to approximately HK$156,000.
All these transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group according to the terms set out in the
relevant master agreements governing them. These transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
by reason that Bright Printing is ultimately owned as to an aggregate of
97% by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon, and Mr.
Chow Man Yan, Michael, all being Directors. Regarding the continuing
connected transactions mentioned above, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed and confirmed that all such transactions have
been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant master agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board of Directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the Continuing Connected
Transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusion in respect of the Continuing Connected Transaction
disclosed in this Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which needs to be disclosed in accordance with the
requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the Listing Rules.
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Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment
at the Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board,

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2011
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and endeavours in following the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) of the “Code on Corporate Governance Practices” (the “Code")
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Board has set up the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.
The terms of references were prepared in accordance with the Code
Provisions. The Board has also set up an internal audit team to monitor
the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group. Throughout the
year, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions, save for the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code.

According to code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Up to the date of this annual report of the
Company, the Board has not appointed any individual to the post of chief
executive officer. The responsibilities of the chief executive officer have
been performed collectively by all the executive Directors, including the
chairman, of the Company. The Board considers that this arrangement is
proper and beneficial to the Group as the stability and efficiency of the
Company's operations, as well as the continuity of the Company’s policies
and strategies, can be maintained. Going forward, the Board will periodically
review the effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing an
individual as the chief executive officer when it thinks appropriate.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors and senior management of the Group on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors and senior management of the Group, all Directors and senior
management of the Group have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and the Company's code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors and senior management throughout
the year ended 31 March 2011.

Board of Directors

At the date of this annual report, the Board is composed of six executive
Directors comprising Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny as the chairman, Mr.
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael as the joint deputy
chairmen, Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman, Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben and Ms
Chow Lai Fung; and three independent non-executive Directors comprising
Dr. Chang Chu Cheng, Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen and Mr. Lee Yiu Pun. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term of one year.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The Board is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategies, the
setting of appropriate strategic policies and internal control, and the
oversight of the operation and financial performance of the Group. Each
year, regular matters reserved for the Board include overall strategies
of the Group, annual budgets, financial statements, dividend policy and
other major corporate activities. For such purposes, the Board held four
meetings during the year, with an average attendance rate of approximately
97%.

The management of the Group, as delegated by the Board, are responsible
for execution of business strategies adopted, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures, and oversight
of the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

Board and Committee Attendance

The Board held four meetings during the year and the average attendance
rate was approximately 97%. Details of the attendance of each of the
Directors at board meetings and committee meetings held for the year
ended 31 March 2011 are set out in the table below:
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Nomination of Directors

The Board has not set up a nomination committee and is responsible for
the nomination of new directors. It reviews regularly the need to appoint
additional directors with appropriate professional knowledge and industry
experience.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board. Its duties are
clearly defined in its terms of reference which have been prepared and
adopted according to the Code Provisions. The Remuneration Committee is
primarily responsible for the review and determination of the remuneration
policies and packages for Directors and senior management of the Company.
The remuneration packages of the executive Directors are stipulated in
their service agreements with the Company. Such packages, including
basic salaries, director’'s fee and discretionary bonus, are determined
by reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience, prevailing
market conditions and their expected time spent and contributions on the
affairs of the Company. The emoluments of the independent non-executive
Directors are determined with regard to their estimated time spent on
the affairs of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of four members,
comprising three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Che
Wai Hang, Allen (Chairman), Dr. Chang Chu Cheng and Mr. Lee Yiu Pun,
and one executive Director, Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to
review the remuneration packages for each of the Directors and senior
management of the Company.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
provided both audit and non-audit services to the Company for a total
remuneration of approximately HK$1,739,000. The relevant fee paid for
audit services amounted to approximately HK$1,156,000. The balance of
the remuneration related to the non-audit services which mainly included
the review of interim results, amounting to approximately HK$190,000;
taxation services, amounting to approximately HK$250,000; and other
non-audit services, amounting to approximately HK$143,000.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board. Its duties are clearly
defined in its terms of reference which have been prepared and adopted
according to the Code Provisions. It provides an important link between
the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within the scope
of the group audit. It also reviews the Group's financial reporting prior to
their approval by the Board, the effectiveness of the external and internal
audit, evaluation of internal controls and risk management.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors. It is chaired by Mr. Lee Yiu Pun with Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen and
Dr. Chang Chu Cheng as members. During the year, the Audit Committee
held two meetings and conducted the following activities:

(1) reviewed results announcements, interim and annual reports of the
Company, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

(2) reviewed the internal controls, risk management and financial matters
of the Group in pursuance of the terms of reference;

(3) reviewed the reports from the auditors of the Company in respect
of the interim and annual financial statements; and

(4) made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
auditors of the Company.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
financial statements of the Group.

The responsibilities of the independent auditor of the Company are set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the shareholders of the Company
on pages 35 to 36 of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system
of internal control so as to ensure the shareholders’ investment and the
Company's assets are properly safeguarded. The system of internal control
is designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, loss or fraud.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group through the Audit Committee and the
internal audit team of the Company. The Board has also considered the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

Hong Kong, 23 June 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

PRICENATERHOUSE(QOPERS

T3 S A% B

BB E G SN EEPT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FUJIKON INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujikon Industrial
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) set out on pages 37 to 102, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile: (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report
A Y R

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2011, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2011
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Statements of Financial Position
AR L 32

As at 31 March 2011 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

R2201MEF3A31B (BREBHBAN - ABBE)
Grou Company
FaMm KA
Note 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
k3 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(Restated)  (Restated)
(&) (&=351)
Non-current assets FRPEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKEAE 6 200,146 203,891 212,793 - -
Investment properties REME 7 1,890 1,600 4,440 - -
Land use rights T AE 8 10,135 23,090 24,662 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ERBEE 9 7,741 7,513 2,480 - -
Investments in subsidiaries RIFBAR2&E 10 - - - 139,000 139,000
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 219,912 236,094 244375 139,000 139,000
Current assets MBEE
Inventories BE 11 158,491 104,978 104,376 - -
Trade receivables JEUE X 12 247,453 163,723 165,666 -
Other receivables H {508 12 13,294 24,006 17,070 249 222
Derivative financial instruments TEemMIA 13 326 171 880 - -
Other financial assets at fair BROTEE AER
value throu?h profit or loss MHEMMBEEE 14 56,883 73,885 8,667 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries = NG 10 - - - 192,403 179,680
Current income tax recoverable AU E g BT 1,612 720 - - 40
Fixed deposits EHER 15 - 6,810 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 15 352,599 385,407 415,846 359 9,831
Total current assets MEEELE 830,658 759,700 712,505 193,011 189,773
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade payables EfTER 16 134,261 96,786 60,103 - -
Accruals and EETERAR
other payables | HENRE 16 80,164 80,872 98,098 3,531 6,501
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAR 19,155 16,776 16,646 69
Bank borrowings RITIEE 17 41,469 26,107 16,988 - -
Total current liabilities mBEGERE 275,049 220,541 191,835 3,600 6501
Net current assets REEERE 555,609 539,159 520,670 | 189,411 183272
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBERE 775,521 775253 765,045 328,411 322272
Non-current liabilities ELEIE=E
Deferred income EJJ )\ 2,064 1,986 - -
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHERE 18 613 1,132 1,892 -
Total non-current liabilities FERBEERAE 2677 3118 1,892 - -
Net assets BEFE 772,844 772,135 763,153 | 328,411 322,272
Equity Ea )
Capital and reserves attributable FBARARREFAA
to the Company's equity holders 2R
Share capital e 19 41,014 40,639 39,919 41,014 40,639
Other reserves Hib G 2 204,000 186,060 177,376 244,245 239,823
Retained earnings REEA
- Proposed dividends —BERE 28 20,507 32,803 35,927 20,507 32,803
- Others —Hi 461,784 468,688 465,477 22,645 9,007
727,305 728,190 718,699 328,411 322,272
Non-controlling interests JEPR M A 2 45,539 43,945 44,454 - -
Total equity Ba@ast 772,844 772,135 763,153 328,411 322,272

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
BEE
Chairman

1

The notes on pages 41 to 102 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

FNEI0QBMEHRERESMBRER < HH

YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON

R T A

Joint Deputy Chairman

BEEITE
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

,»/T nAﬁqﬁﬁﬁi@

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BE2MF3ANABLEFR(BRERBIN - ABBFHE)
Note 2011 2010
B & $'000 $'000
Revenue A \ 22 1,223,641 913,229
Cost of sales HERA (1,039,813) (729,664)
Gross profit EF 183,828 183,565
Other gains — net H At Yo as — 48 23 1,093 74
Distribution and selling expenses % #8 M $5 & 5 1 (26,724) (19,046)
General and administrative expenses — & & 77 % (115,983) (102,753)
Operating profit £ R A 24 42,214 61,840
Finance income BME WA 25 3,048 1,481
Finance costs & AR 25 (3,409) (1,067)
Profit before income tax Fk BT 15 B4 Al 4 41,853 62,254
Income tax expenses Frisiix 26 (6,496) (7,260)
Profit for the year F 175 F) 35,357 54,994
Other comprehensive income: Hih2miss
Currency translation differences ERERE 16,505 881
Fair value gains on available- AHEERNBEE
for-sale financial assets Z R FHEYE 70 352
Release of reserves upon BT BB A B B
disposal of subsidiaries Fr iR BR 2 8 (1,683) -
Release of reserve upon i B — BT /8 1 A B
dissolution of a subsidiary Frigts 2 (B 137 -
Other comprehensive income FRNEME2EKE - SMRTIE
for the year, net of tax 15,029 1,233
Total comprehensive income FRNETHEKHERE
for the year 50,386 56,227
Profit attributable to: wmAERE
Equity holders of the Company RRATIREREA 30,008 51,142
Non-controlling interests FEA7E )1 A 2 5,349 3,852
35,357 54,994
Total comprehensive rHKEBERE
income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RATREREA 43,892 52,326
Non-controlling interests FE1E I 1 A 6,494 3,901
50,386 56,227
Dividends f% 8 28 36,912 48,771
Earnings per share for profit FRHEBARQFRE
attributable to the equity holders B A 2 & FIHFAL 2 F
of the Company during the year
- Basic (HK cents per share) -EAR(FRBM) 29 7.3 12.8
— Diluted (HK cents per share) —#5E (FRRBW) 29 7.3 12.7

The notes on pages 41 to 102 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

FBMNF102B ZWFE DM EGAMBHRER 2215 -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

22 N\ RV
b oM 2 S T
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
BE2MFIANBLEFR(BREHRBI - BB E)
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
HEREAGRESEA
Non-
Share Other Retained  controlling
capital reserves earnings interests Total
Note BAx  HiEE  RERT FEHMER @t
R §000 5000 §000 §000 5000
At 1 April 2009 #2009F4R1H 39,919 177,376 501,404 44,454 763,153
Profit for the year EREA - - 51,142 3,852 54,994
Other comprehensive income: Ef2EsE
- Currency translation differences -BHER 21 - 832 - 49 881
- Fair value gains on available-for-sale - THHENBEE
financial assets L RTEYE 2 - 352 - - 352
Total comprehensive income for the HE0E3ANBLEER
year ended 31 March 2010 2ENAEE - 1,184 51,142 3,901 56,227
Employee share option scheme: EERREE
~ Value of employee services -BERBEE N - (207) - - (207)
— Proceeds from shares issued upon - BB EMETRN
exercise of share options LFBHRE 21 70 8,547 - - 9,267
Release of property revaluation reserve HERENERAER
upon disposal of investment properties LNEERREE 21 - (1,067) 1,067 - -
Appropriation of statutory reserves EERBENR 21 - 07 (227) - -
Dividends paid BRRE - - (51,895) (4,410) (56,305)
At 31 March 2010 R2010F3A31R 40,639 186,060 501,491 43,945 172,135
Profit for the year ERER = = 30,008 5,349 35,357
Other comprehensive income: A2 EbE
- Currency translation differences -EBRER 2 - 15,360 - 1,145 16,505
- Fair value gains on available-for-sale - THHENBEE
financial assets 2 AT AW 21 - 70 - - 70
~ Release of reserves upon disposal of subsidiaries - HEMBLRAK
ek 2 i 21 - (1,683) - - (1,683)
— Release of reserve upon dissolution of a subsidiary - EREE B A A
FERRR < e 21 - 137 - - 137
Total comprehensive income for the HEWNFIANALFE
year ended 31 March 2011 rENERE - 13,884 30,008 6,494 50,386
Employee share option scheme: EERMREE
— Proceeds from shares issued upon - (TR EREm BT R
exercise of share options LIEHE 21 375 4,422 - - 4,197
Release of investment reserve upon disposal HEAHLENBEER
of available-for-sale financial assets Rk RERE 2 - (366) - - (366)
Dividends paid BRERE = = (49,208) (4,900) (54,108)
At 31 March 2011 R2011%38318 41,014 204,000 482,291 45,439 772,844

FNEI10QB ZMEDIFERESMBRER HH -

The notes on pages 41 to 102 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HABAERE

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

HEZ20ME3ANBUEFE(BRISEHAIN - UBEFHH)

Note 2011 2010
B & $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating RETHRERE
activities
Cash (used in)/generated mEEES (R Bz RE
from operations 31(a) (18,721) 121,029
Interest paid EF B (3,409) (1,067)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EBEBNEH (5,497) (6,440)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EIREFBHMEH 130 785
China corporate income tax paid EAHRBSEMEH (835) (2,955)
China corporate income tax ERERBEPEMEH
refunded 674 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from wEES (A,
operating activities sz R&e F5 (27,658) 111,352
Cash flows from investing activities BREFBHRERE
Interest received 2 U FE 3,048 1,481
Purchase of property, plant BAME - WERE&E
and equipment (21,562) (34,893)
Purchase of other financial assets 3 AR QA F{E AIEx
at fair value through profit or loss B E (0 B 1% & = (24,923) (64,767)
Purchase of available-for-sale BATHILEMBEE
financial assets (5,205) (4,681)
Proceeds from disposal of &SRS BT B E PR S UA
available-for-sale financial assets 5,025 -
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HEWE - HE
plant and equipment N Fris 5118 58 307
Proceeds from disposal of HE R A Y 2 A B A
investment properties - 2,873
Proceeds from disposal of other HER A FE AER
financial assets at fair value Bt B 75 & B P S AT
through profit or loss 43,846 2,166
Proceeds from disposal of HE M E R RS 5IE
subsidiaries, net of cash disposed FIRE HERS 31(c) 12,954 -
Decrease/(increase) in fixed deposits /& Hi{F ZUB 2 (3E h0) 6,810 (6,810)
Net cash generated from/ wEESE,(FTR)
(used in) investing activities 2B & 20,051 (104,324)
Cash flows from financing activities BMETHESHE 31(b)
. Issue of shares upon exercise BRI 1T {50 i Ak A T 25 1T IR 19
8 of share options 4,797 9,267
S Dividends paid to a non-controlling 2118 & 7] Iz 4&
Q shareholder of a subsidiary % 52 B (4,900) (4,410)
. Dividends paid [EENEEES! (49,208) (51,895)
g New bank loans HIBIRITE N 25,463 26,077
2 Repayment of bank loans BRIETER (11,574) (17,007)
£ Net cash used in financing activities RIEEZEFA NS E5 (35,422) (37,968)
Net decrease in cash and ReRReFEMRDFE
cash equivalents (43,029) (30,940)
Exchange differences ME X =58 10,221 501
Cash and cash equivalents at FHRekReEED
beginning of the year 385,407 415,846
Cash and cash equivalents at FRBERREEED
end of the year 352,599 385,407

The notes on pages 41 to 102 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

General information

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the design, manufacture,
marketing and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and
other electronic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 23 June 2011.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

Bk 25 e % Mk

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEHAI - BB E)

—REH

ErEEXERERAR(ARE]) REM
BRR(HBIALE D EBRERG 2
& RERHEERESR RHRHEAET

Em e

KRR BRBFRESEMKZZBER AR -
H 5F it #F = BE 2 b 4k ACanon’ s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda °

ARFREBHAZSHERAR LT -

BREERBPIN NREAPEREREAZER
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ER2011F6 23 EE =i ETIE -

TESTBRBE

REANGAMBREAMEAZEEGFER
AN TX - BRABEHBI - W FBEREN
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Notes to the Financial Statements
$0F 5 e 3% B

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - BB E)

FESHBEERUE#)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)

2.1 REEE(HF)
(a) MAKLIETT R ~ EH| 2 &

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting revised standards,
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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amendments to standards and interpretations

In 2010, the Group adopted HKAS 17 (Amendment), “Leases”,
which is mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2010.

HKAS 17 (Amendment), “Leases”, deletes specific guidance
regarding classification of leases of land, so as to eliminate
inconsistency with the general guidance on lease classification.
As a result, leases of land should be classified as either
finance or operating lease using the general principles of
HKAS 17, i.e. whether the lease transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to
the lessee. Prior to the amendment, land interest which title
is not expected to pass to the Group by the end of the lease
term was classified as operating lease under “Leasehold land
and land use rights”, and amortised over the lease term.

HKAS 17 (Amendment) has been applied retrospectively
for annual periods beginning 1 April 2010 in accordance
with the effective date and transitional provisions of the
amendment. The Group has reassessed the classification of
unexpired leasehold land and land use rights as at 1 April
2010 on the basis of information existing at the inception
of those leases, and recognised the leasehold land in Hong
Kong as finance lease retrospectively. As a result of the
reassessment, the Group has reclassified the leasehold land
from operating lease to finance lease.

As the property interest is held for own use, the land interest
is accounted for as property, plant and equipment and is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset
and the lease term.

HP 244
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Notes to the Financial Statements
50 75 e 3% B

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEHAI - BB E)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESBRBE (@)
(Continued)

2.1 REEE(HF)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting revised standards, (a) RAMLIERTER -~ ZEH| =2 1&
amendments to standards and interpretations IR E (HF)
(Continued)

As at 31 March As at 1 April

M3A31H R4A1H
2011 2010 2009
$'000 $'000 $'000

Increase in property, plant #1% - &= M 1L 0
and equipment 10,402 10,689 10,976
Decrease in land use rights b {¥ F5 42 5 > 10,402 10,689 10,976

The adoption of this amendment also resulted in an increase in
depreciation of property, plant and equipment of HK$287,000
and a decrease in amortisation of land use rights of HK$287,000
for the year ended 31 March 2011 and 2010.

HK Interpretation 5, “Presentation of financial statements
— Classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains
a repayment on demand clause”, specifies that amounts
repayable under a loan agreement which includes a clause
that gives the lender the unconditional right to call the
loan at any time shall be classified by the borrower as
current liabilities in its statement of financial position. The
interpretation has no impact on the consolidated financial
statements as all the Group's bank borrowings are repayable
within twelve months.

AN A AS 5] 2N I8 58 BB 22011 %
2010F3A3MBLEFEZME - B
B N i T &1 hn287,00078 T K&+
{50 A A 4 55 R 2287,000%8 7T ©

BEREESRIUBHRR ZE2HR -
1B XA B 8 1% 2SR AN B I& R
ZEBMERZABIFBERAL
AR EFBRRKRABIREE B
F TS T ERA B SRR
BEREEERZERESRI SR
B - ARAKBEZHAAERITEE
BEART_EAREE SZRE
HEaMBRREBEMNZE
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
$0F 5 e 3% B

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - BB E)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTBEHE @)

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mBEREH)

(a) Effect of adopting revised standards, (a) MAKLIETT R ~ EH| 2 &
amendments to standards and interpretations FAIRRE2EE (&)
(Continued)

The following revised standards, amendments to standards and A TS ET LRI ~ B 2 B8] ka2
interpretation are also mandatory for the Group’s financial 2R ZN £ 201054 51 B #E 2 Bt
year beginning on 1 April 2010: IR 4F [Z 58 Il ER 4R
e HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (excluding
BBMBRELR] (BFTA) HKAS17 (Amendment) “Leases”)
BB ELER2009F 2 BUE (T BEEBGEE
AE175% (BT A)[HHE D)
e HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time adoption of HKFRSs
B mEERIFE 15 (KIBE]) BORER T S B 15 s 22 R
e HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional exemptions for first-time adopters
BB BMELERIZE15E (BETAR) BRERNE 2 BBINRR
e HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions
B mEERIZFE2HR (BFTR) SEURSEEZBRNDERRS
e HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations
ERUBHREENEIR (LET) EBa 0
e HKFRS 5 (Amendment) Non-current assets held for sale and
B REERIFESH (BFTAR) discontinued operations
FEREZHERBEERBRIEEEE
e HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate financial statements
BB ERIE275% (K1BET) RE KRB EHRE
e HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of right issues
BB G ERE329 (BFIA) Gl eak |
e HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible hedged items
R SFIERIE3SE (BFTA) S ERERIER
e HK (IFRIC) — Int 17 Distribution of non-cash assets to owners
58 (BB BREEIZRELZES) MEBADIKIEEEE
—REFE1TR
The adoption of these revised standards, amendments to ez SRS TR - R Z 85T
standards and interpretation did not result in a significant N2 B AN £R B 35 48 e B A IR LR
impact on the results and financial position of the Group. EEKERTLE -
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and revised standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations that have been

issued but are not effective

The following new and revised standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations have been issued, but are not
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1 April
2010 and have not been early adopted.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
BB G ER (BETA)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
B EHREERE15(BFTA)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
BBV BREENETR(EFTA)

HKFRS 9
BEMBHREERNFE IR

HKAS 12 (Amendment)
BB ERE125 (BRI A)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
BB GETER|F 2457 (LIEE])

HK (IFRIC) — Int 14 (Amendment)

Bk 25 e % Mk

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEHAI - BB E)

2 FESHEEME@®)

2.1 REEE(HF)

(b) B IEMEE R ERKZHET REE
RIZER| ~ ERIZEFTRBE

B R RASHE T AR - 2R 2 &
IR EBRAEE2010F4A18H
BB BREEEEMBEMREKXR
W IR R ERAR o

Improvements to HKFRSs 20102

BRI HEER20105F 2 HE?

Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates
for first-time adopters?

BENBEBERRMMEG & RAE 2B E Q8

Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets®

BRE-UBEEZBB’

Financial instruments®
SHMITA®

Deferred tax — Recovery of underlying assets*

EET A - W EEEEE

Related party disclosures?
P A TR E?

Prepayment of a minimum funding requirement?

EB(BEHEREEIREZES)
—RES145E (BETAX)

RIEE € ER 2 BMNHKIEA

e HK (IFRIC) = Int 19
BB (BRI HEREERRELZE
—2EE195%

Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
) instruments’

MERATAKESRAE

3

! Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2010
H2010F7 A1 B 2 1R FA 2 B IR E A 3

d Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2011

N
2011 A1 AR BBB I MBREEER c
E Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2011 =
H2011F7R1 B3k 2 BB 2 B IEFEER =
4 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2012 ‘Fi
2012481 A1 F 52 1 B 1 2 B B 4F J A -

g Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2013
201341 A1 B R 2 KBIIR 2 BT F A K m
at
The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above B R R LR REERT W
new and revised standards, amendments to standards, #H - EBZEITRRBEASE M
interpretation will not result in a significant impact on the XERVBRAZEBKEKNF Q,%
results and financial position of the Group. 2o IE
S
]
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(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation 2.2 #REHRE
The consolidated financial statements include the financial RirE W BHRERBERNRAREFREH
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to BAREZE3IANB L ZHBEHRE -
31 March.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

In the Company's statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (Note 2.8). The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

(a) MR A

MEBAREASEAEEIEEMK
REBRRMBER  —RN®
RBBFEIRERE 2 g - B E
AEEREEG S —ERE - BAl
ATERAR R BERER T
ERFEGTER -

EMB ARt REBEAKE
ZBERHERAARK - ENE AR
2RI BB ILERS
N

AEEABBEEREBAMHA
R WBE-—MNBRARMEBEZENNK
BERAEREE FMELRABRA
SEBTRARGENDTE - B
ENREERAANERIELN
ERMEEXBENATE - WERE
BRARELRH - REBA G
PR ER BB EERMAR AR
RBIABENTRNKER 2 RF
Bt & -

SERARZMZRS - RHZ#EH
RABHRWZ TIALHE - RIER 5
REKEREEREERE BRI
AREBRBETTAEE - HWEAA
ZEABRCOEFEELSRE - A
BRENEBRRAZEHARETAE
_ﬁ"

EARRRZHHEARRERA - B
RAZRERRAERNRREEE
BHBIIR(HF2.8) - MBARZ
XEBRARRRE W R EREE
N



Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors who
collectively make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

Bk 25 e % Mk

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEHAI - BB E)

2 FESHEEME@®)

2.2

2.4

RElRE (A1)

(b) EESFIEFIMEHZNRS
AEEKEFEHERZORIHE
REXAKERSHBEANRS - 1
FFEESEREEE - EEE AR
BEEEBERGEMNBRAREEFEN
FHEEZENERERERDIIRE -
ST IFEH S BIIRERER
TR HE 28 51| B o

o EB IR &

BB D IR R A E Lﬁ%Ah1m
AR E B ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi =
BRRABEREED D @Eﬁ/ﬁ&%
HRIR - WEIETE A EE RS ERER
ZHITESE -

IR E

(a) THEEEMWMEZI G Y
AEEFEE R VB HmEPAIIIA
BN EREEMTECETELE
REzE¥FE((NRREE]) - &7
EHBEMERUNBITENR BLAAE
REZNEEEMEFEH -

(b) X B RAER
INERZRARZ A ZERBE R
DB - BENERHELEZE
RBEARGIIEFECEBEE
MBEAFREXBREEL ZEN
BEFAZEEER  HEFEERE
BPEEARNBRSREPRRE
FEHMZIER - AEER A%
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

(c)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in amortised costs are recognised in statement of
comprehensive income, and other changes in carrying amount
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income presented are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average rate is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in

other comprehensive income.

2

FESHBEERUE#)

2.4 ShEBRE (F)
(b) XER&EeR(EF)

(c)

MONEHEL D BRAHEBEEZE
BKEZHNATEED  BRO AR
HZBHEKARE R 2 BE) HE
%%EEZEm“@ B H XN
BHEBAREZEFAZERER
" ﬁ%ﬁﬁZﬁ@ EF AT AE
i 2 T W& A

HEBUBEERRBEZELERE
B HRA D FEKRNEEZ — &
Do ERFERFBEERAR
(PlEnE R FEFFABRAER) 2
ERERAFABEZA/RFER
BREEZ 8D  ERFEEH
BEEPIWSBERATHLEE 2%
SHIZELEZBEEEHARMCER
Wz A EREA -

£EHAF
FEREEEZNEETRE 2K
SEER(EPREBREREWKR
B2 XA R BARRBILAT
TEHRERENNEE

() SHBHREZIIZEERA
BEUZRERREREER
W R

(i) B2EBERMEBIBAR
X HERFIERBE (B IE
ZFEEL N RRRR 5 B &
TEXZRFEZEZEEAL
B FEUBER TRA R E TS
BZZBZEXRBE): K

Fr BULE & 2 [E X Z IR
Eﬁﬁi@l& Eﬁuu °
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTBEHSE @)
(Continued)

2.4 ShEEBRE (F)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged in the
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the

(c) EEATF (&)

RERBL MERIEBZRE
FEMAEEPZEREZERER
HitEWTAMELZIELZRETY
FRAREMEEmREA - R HEFEN
EBE - ARG ZELZEN
EHBERPIFALERDRER
B — &R °

WERIINCERELEZEBERAF
BERABETNERZRINERZEER
BERE  WARKRERKE -

2.5 M1% - BERRE

WEDAREHEZHELTHMIANAA
HMY % - BE R REIRE LKA T
ENBEERIE FELRAREER
EEMEEMERER -

HigMx R EENBREZIERAHN
AREEMNRRALEE - MaxIE B W
RABER] SERT ER - T RRBREZEEMNK
HEXERRBLEE(WER) - A
oA 42 B AR B FE 2 A 1O B BB AR
EmK SR AR o

WE D AREHEZHELT A Lih#E
o AR PR EL B E R B R iR 5 o 1 B
DRBEREZHET 2 BH N EM
BEZWENERESE - UERAR

straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values FIABEN G AICEAFHRNS# - 47 g
over their estimated useful lives, as follow: EERMT g
_FH

Leasehold land classified Shorter of remaining WEDRBMENRE 30E50F 2 FgR =
as finance lease lease term of 30-50 ZHE i 8 HA 3k A] (5 A F 2 .
years or useful life (ABREERE)

Buildings 2.5% to 8'/3% 25 2.5%Z%8'/3% 3;{
Machinery and moulds 10% to 30% Hem R R A 10%2E30%
Furniture and equipment 20% to 30% RIS & Ty 20%Z%=30% g%
Motor vehicles 30% B 30%  of
S

al
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(Continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within other
gains-net, in the statement of comprehensive income.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents office buildings under
construction and machinery and equipment pending installation.
It is stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss. Cost
includes the original cost of land, construction expenditures
incurred, machinery and related installation costs, and other costs
attributable to the construction of the buildings and installation
of machinery and equipment. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction-in-progress until the construction work
is completed and ready for intended use.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies
in the consolidated group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases is classified and accounted
for as investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted for
as if it was a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

2

FESHBEERUE#)

2.6

2.7

FEEMNEEESREMGEFTKDOE
E'H%EE%%WﬁéﬂW@ﬁﬁmﬁ

HE 2 Wes & B 1R T iR 85 & P 1S SRR &
HIEFEEZZRAE  YRE2EKRER
Rz H AW s — R R o

EEIR

ERTREERZFZRIOEET A
RFRE 2 MR - ARAR R &
MEBIESIR - KABHE LT REKE
B ITRER BREABRERE
AR Efth 8248 = T 12 R X 28 1 &
KRR ZRA - EREIRTEFER
B BEERFIRZARAERERSE
ALk e

REM=

FERPHEHSKWAREANEBEIMER
BHYFEEBETSRRMERZME
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NEEHERF 2 THRAAIREYE
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTBEHSE @)
(Continued)

2.7 REWR(4E)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are performed in accordance with the guidance issued by
the International Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations
are reviewed annually by external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions about
rental income from future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, including finance lease
liabilities in respect of land classified as investment property;
others, including contingent rent payments, are not recognised
in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

EERBERR REVMERAFEA
e ATFEDANERTSERSER
MRUBERRIEEEEEE - 3k
MZEZRFEHAE - EREEFUES

o ARBERRARNERM S Z0H
ERITRASRERMNEEMEES
Ao REMENREBEERAEEENZE
SR EIIMET - ZFEEHESFH
SMERFEERDEITATR ©

REWMEZ RFERBR(ES ) HE
HE 2 He A RAR TR A A%
HERBZHS WA -

RFENRA-EERBREBYEZE
MBERRSAHE - WERSIR LD
RR—REE BEREREAKREME
ZtwHEBzZMEEERE: HRES
mE(BREABEEN) BN AR
o

B 1& 32 20 BE 75 2ROR R AL B Bl 25 AR
SEBZEXHEE A EHAER - 4 A
AAAZREEZREBE MEHEMLE
ERRERANEELEZMBRMEZ 2
m i as R RSIER T ©

ATEZ BBI AR EMEED -

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified MIREDMEEIERR  ZWEBEHH §
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of HAEME BEREE UEHH>EBE O
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Bz N TFEERKATE E
—
If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment W BELRKESERRBRRE
property because its use has changed, any difference between RIREWE  ZEMEREEEAZ EFM
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date RAESEAFTEZZRE  BRERED \E;{
of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, HERFEICHNERNERASWE B g
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain ERFBEEMHREE A WA FEE g
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the BREEBERERR AIZEREHR D
statement of comprehensive income. THKERPER o g
|
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(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested at
least annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are classified as trade and other
receivables, fixed deposits and cash and cash equivalents in
the statement of financial position (Notes 2.12 and 2.13).

2
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)

2.9 BMBEE#F)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on the date of trade — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of
comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category,
are presented in the statement of comprehensive income within
“other gains” in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a
foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount
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of the security. The translation differences related to changes in AZEWEE - B EEE b2 &) B =t %
amortised costs are recognised in statement of comprehensive AEmEEWZ - DEAHEHEEN Y S
income, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in B S\ :’zﬁ S RO EATH-EER W
other comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of monetary A N TR A HMD =
securities classified as available-for-sale and non-monetary a5 o i
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other H
comprehensive income. ;E;{
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2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
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When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the statement of comprehensive income as “gains
and losses from investment securities”. Interest on available-for-
sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when the Group's right to
receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on equity instruments are not reversed through the
statement of comprehensive income. Impairment testing of trade
receivables is described in Note 2.12.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments 210874 €mIT A

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. At
31 March 2011, the Group did not designate any derivatives as
hedging instruments. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that

2.1

2,47

PTETARIITETAEAHZARA
FENSLER HEERATFEEFE
B o WIEBREEN Z Wk EE - |
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E o 2011438318 » A& B I £ 45
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the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the ERHBERENTR - BBEEL/EER 8
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present EEEMGGTRKE 2 RERRTERF §
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original EMECREMENERE - BEZKE =
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced BEeFERBEERIR  mMEBSEIR g
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the THWRRKRER - BRKERAAYE
loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. When B EREREREERAME - 5t E”E
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the BIMEmMARERKED 2B EtAEZE @
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries s zkH o ;21
of amounts previously written off are credited in the statement E;:’»
of comprehensive income. $
m
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.12 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial
asset or financial liability, including fees and commissions paid to
agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of

216 EMRIEEF BB

FARAXHEREMRBELERE - Kk
FMBERRNEE KSR A E RN ERE
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the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related EESESRCHMENEBEEERER
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax & o

liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

EEFTEHEETIB A AT MK IR
KRERBGN 2 B ZRMBERBALR °

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising REMGHARMBRARIZKREEEZ §
on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the TR ERE MBS HEWAEEAES S
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group TREZE2EBRKME MOREEREEA e
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse TE R KB ] e N = BEE AR A o #
in the foreseeable future. -
i

H,
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2.17 Share capital 217 B it
Vi3

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. TR BRI o i
=

)

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares BTHRSBREERENARTDRNREAR 5
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from HIVERTAS FRIE 2 HUR (FBRFHIE) ° |

the proceeds.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution
plans in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The schemes are
generally funded through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a share-based compensation plan. The
fair value of the options granted for the employee services is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. At each statement of financial
position date, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
statement of comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.
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(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued) 218 EEEF (&)

(c) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
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2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.20 W ATERR (&)
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(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

(c) Management fees and handling income

Management fees and handling income are recognised when
the relevant services are rendered.

(d) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the relevant leases.

2.21 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

2.22 Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract) is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. The Group performs a
liability adequacy test at each statement of financial position date
by comparing its net liability regarding the financial guarantee
with the amount that would be required if the financial guarantee
were to result in a present legal or constructive obligation. If the
liability is less than its present legal or constructive obligation
amount, the entire difference is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. During the year, no provision has been
made in the financial statements for the financial guarantees.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group's and the Company'’s financial statements
in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

(b) FE WA

) B A T AR 5 B [ B 91 4 R A AR
RERABIAMHER -

(c) EEEAREEIA

EIRERREEWATINEE AR
AR5 B ABR o

(d) BEWA

HEWATIREEBEANFHIAE
BOENER ©

221 EEHEL

A A RIE M R A R 2 KR A B
OBz BHODBERELHEN - KEH
wHEE(MBRREEEAZERNER) R
HHABERER 2R SR SFOE o

2.22 ISR

MBERER(EFT-—BRBRAN) R A
FBROAFLEERE LBESAA
HAEEBEBARER B HFIZRERT
AZ RAT B ERTRFTEL N RARE
ZHEX AKEEREUBRAKAE
TREREMRAH - TERKMBER
ZBEFRERNMBERMES 2HRT
FRBEAREEEEMB 2 BIEHLL
e MBEIRERGEEREERIETE
BEEZeR  2EEZHAREZERER
NHER - TR BHERERBDALERT T
FERIEL B -

R B 2Kk
AARBRRDIKOBSERSERR
AR ENFERAEE R AR E I
BRRERRAE -



Notes to the Financial Statements
50 75 e 3% B

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEHAI - BB E)

FTESHEERUE#)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)

2.24 BT B
B AL S0 & I M AR 75 R T 47 B A% AT Uk ER
MASEBBEEHFE AN EIEER K
FIRENHBBIEE A FERRAR °

2.24 Government grant

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

B BB 8 Bb OB AN G BUR T - S BRE

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and credited

to the statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended
to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are deferred and credited to the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.
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3 Financial risk management 3 BMKERERE

3.1 BiIEREZE

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash
flow and fair value interest-rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management policy focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland
China with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB") and US dollars (“USD").
The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entities to
which they relate.

The Group entered into foreign currency forward
contracts to manage such exposure. The net fair value
of foreign exchange forward contracts entered into by
the Group for managing the risk relating to monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at 31 March
2011 was HK$326,000 (2010: HK$171,000) and has been
recognised as derivative financial instruments.

AEEZEBAZZRBUBEER : T5
R (EMERR  ERERARRES
mEAFENXRRE)  EERBRMTE
BExER AKEZEBRREEBRE
SPRBENBRZESBTS  XEAIRN
BHRNEEMBRREKZEETFF
ERERE EFSEHNILRSERS
HAZERARZER  BHEBRRZEEMN
T e

(a) TiZ A&

(i) IhEEE B
AEEBFZREFEBERFRHA
MEEER  XPZEEUE
T(MET]) AREB(TAR
BDRETTET] - A&
E AR EZINERBEE KA
AREERGERERANEEE
REHERATh AL E M DASN 2 B S 4
BEERARE -

AEBFUIINERESLHUE
EEHERR - K2011F3 831
H A&EEBEMETLRERER
NS EREERABEZRAR
ZHINEHESENZ AT FES
326,000 7£ (2010 : 171,000
BIL) EEBRAITES R
THo

61

&4 1102/010C

BEETE

5

=
i
EC

=ERNA =2



o
N
~
o
o
N
+
jd
o
Q
O
o
©
>
j=
=
<

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
50 5 e 3 B

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHBEHN

3

62

At E)

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2011, if HKD/USD had weakened/strengthened
by 4% (2010: 2%) against RMB with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$4,106,000 (2010: HK$1,934,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of RMB-denominated monetary
assets and liabilities.

Price risk

The Group's structured deposits, listed securities and
investment funds are susceptible to market price risk
arising from uncertainties about future prices of those
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.
Management considered that the exposure of structured
deposits, listed securities and investment funds to price
risk is not significant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for certain bank deposits, the Group's income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings.
The Group will review whether bank loans bearing fixed
or floating rates should be drawn from time to time with
reference to the trend of changes in interest rates.

The Group's bank borrowings were primarily at fixed rates
which expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
The Group generally does not use financial derivatives
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
resulted from the changes in interest rates on interest-
bearing assets and bank borrowings.
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TEEREMEL - EEEE
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BEAFREE MAKEZ
WARBERESRAE LB
RGN R EE o

74 B R B o 4R AT 5 B
B4 AREBLEFEED
B UBMESEETHE
BESRTRBITHK -

AEBEZRITEEIERER
fBE  SAEEAXRRXATE
MERR AEE-—RKRTE
155 A & BT 4 T B ¥k A X &,

68 o
oS

EEEERGFEEERRITE
EZ2NXBHETESREXN

By 488
T o




Notes to the Financial Statements

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

(c)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, cash
and bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

At 31 March 2011, the Company had provided guarantees in
respect of banking facilities of its subsidiaries. Credit risk
relating to those guarantees amounted to approximately
HK$196,982,000 (2010: HK$155,700,000), which represented
the notional amounts of such guarantees.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has put in place
policies to ensure that sales of products are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history. The Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers and takes appropriate
follow-up actions to recover overdue debts.

The Group’s historical experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and
the directors are of the opinion that adequate provision
for uncollectible trade receivables has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, substantially all cash and
bank deposits are placed with major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China; all financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-
for-sale financial assets are also placed with those financial
institutions which management believes are of high credit
quality. Management does not expect any losses arising from
non-performance by these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

Bk 25 e < F

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEHAI - BB E)

3 BHRRERE@)

3.1 BiIEREE &)
(b) EERE

(c)

EMER R EMEEKE Rk
RITER - BRAFEFABRNEH
BEERAHRLEMBEE KA
BT AEE M EEfAX R
AEERR -

R2011F3A318 AR FEmE
B Aa 2 RITEERBEER-
EHZEERZEERRAO A
196,982,0005% 7£(2010: 155,700,000
B  BIBEEERZEREHE -

RN E R R E M ERFIRME
AEECHFTBER - ABRERE
ERBREZEPHEER - &%
BreESAmErL2EERR
YEFHESTEREBHRER -
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FEAh FZoRERE - ZnE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
50 75 e 3% B

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - LBBEE)

3
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity structure
of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the
Group. The Group also maintains a healthy level of liquid assets
and committed banking facilities to ensure the availability of
sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected and material
cash requirements in the ordinary course of business. At 31
March 2011, the Group has unutilised committed banking
facilities of HK$268,548,000 (2010: HK$238,150,000).

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities,
the remaining periods of which at the end of the reporting
period at the statement of financial position to the contractual
maturity date are within 12 months. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3

KRR EE#)

3.1 BiIEREE (&)

(c) REBIEESEAM (&)
AEEESBEFAEEEREE -
BE BERRAEZRBESEE
ZEBELR FEREZER
B - AKENBRBEESRE
ARENRTEEEERFIRER
KFE - UBRERHRESREN
BEEEBEPRODERRER
Z2IREFEE - K201143H318 -
NREBzAHHEAFEWNEITE
B %8 [ /268,548,000 7 (2010 :
238,150,000 7T) °

TEIMAKBEZHBAB > Bt
BRARZBEHRMERBEALD
FEB 2R THRAI2EAR - &
PHRESRERANARREAR SR

=

2011 2010

$'000 $'000

Trade and other payables JE A~ 8 3 B B A JE A5 RROE 208,259 177,492
Bank borrowings, secured RITIEE - BER 41,469 26,107
Interest payables FE A 1,381 901
251,109 204,500

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safequard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other shareholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total equity, including
share capital, other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Group was at the net cash
position.

3.2 EXEKER

FEBEBREEAR  UREEEHFE
SERE  RRREEMENITE AR
HOH SR REEFEBAREER
BN

REFSABERNERE  AEEXREH
BERTRREZBRESHE HEABER
R EITH AR D EIE -

AEFNAER(BERAE - RaHER
RE ) BEERER o

R2011F X2010F3A31H » AXEBE B R
FIE MR -
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MBEKREE®
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREMET

Effective 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the amendment FH20094F1 A1 HE - REBRNE S

to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the BHREENEREACRMITATEEE

statement of financial position at fair value, this requires disclosure BB ARIE AT EGTENER] - BER

of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value EETHAFEFERBREATE

measurement hierarchy: =

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for F1R- HREESXBEEERTISH
identical assets or liabilities. WECREFE) -

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level FHh- BEXEBBEZHAELIFEEIE
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either RENVRA 2 RE - WA EE
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived (B )@ (8 B3
from prices). iR AT B AR -

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based F3%h- BEXEBEBEZBHAEILIFEKE
on observable market data (that is, unobservable ARz misE8E(NELE
inputs). R A) o

The following table presents the Group's assets that are measured 7N 5 B 7020113 A31 B R A FEF 28 & & W0

at fair value at 31 March 2011. ™~
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R 28K FE3IM @at
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value ERAFEFAER
through profit or loss WS EE
— Structured deposits —EEEER - 48,796 - 48,796
— Listed securities and - FTEFREEES
investment funds 8,087 - - 8,087
Derivatives financial instruments $T4 & g T A - 326 - 326
Available-for-sale financial At HEMSEE N
o
assets §
— Corporate bonds -EES 7,741 - - 7,741 S
_m
H
Total assets BEE 15,828 49,122 - 64,950
Ho}
H,
it
il
e
1
>8]
il
o
5
B
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(BREBHAIN - LUBEEETE)
3 Financial risk management (cContinued)

66

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group's assets that are measured

3 BHERRERE@)

3.3 DEEMF(#E)
AEBP2010F3A31HIRAFENE

at fair value at 31 March 2010. WEEMNT :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14K F24) £33 st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value EAFERARR
through profit or loss WA TS E E
— Structured deposits ~EBEER - 67,449 - 67,449
— Listed securities and -ETREFAREREESR
investment funds 6,436 - - 6,436
Derivatives financial instruments $74£ &8 T A - 171 - 171
Available-for-sale financial AN ENFEE
assets
— Corporate bonds -EEF 7,513 - - 7,513
Total assets BEE 13,949 67,620 - 81,569

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such
as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the statement of
financial position date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments. The fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market
rates at the end of the reporting period.

RERTHEEZERIE(WAREEZITET
ARBERFRARLERES) 2 A FE/YBMN
MRANTSHRE - ARERBYBEEMRZ
MEREBER/ZHFEAE -

DHRERTHEE LSBT APINSITET
By AFEDEAGERKET - AEEERS
Bk - SRR s A R TR R
B EMEENEAEUSMI AT ERES
RSHRE BE BRI AN TFERSAEA
H R PSR SRR - EHNEA
492 71 B 5 PR R o5 MR A R BE Y R M T
BERLE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management expects it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available to utilise against the
temporary differences or tax losses. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, and
related depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense
in future periods.

4

B 25 e % F

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - BB E)

B REHE R A E
7% o5 B B R R AE ) At IR AR o EEAE MM B

7[(_

TREHBERMAERER - X T —HBEF

EEEARBREKEELAEREEEAR
BEMfbst RRERR T XM -

(a)

(b)

i
AEBRZERDEERBMNAFHR -
REEEMZAEHRERR AELEXR
HE - BEEXBEFETHERERSME
MEFELRETE HEBEEZRK
AMEREENRYCHE2EE - A
MEReyEIETABBE IR
P57 S ST TR TR B

HEREZELMMBABEREBZELEME
MEEREEEBEARKEAELLIRE
RUEMNAEEEZEEREZRABRA
BERER ZSHEHZeREREME
BEEK  UZFEZEGSRMENE
ZHEARZEBRIEMSNEEZER °

M BERRB2ZERY

AEBEEEBIIEME  BELRE
ZEAAERFRARARTERR - &
ENREBEEULENRAZEZYE - BE

REERERFHZBEREREL -
EEEERNERERBTMHA ZFHE
BRI INIT E B A o E S i MO B &
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(BRAEHBEHN

At E)

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

68

(c)

(d)

(e)

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables.
Provisions are applied to bills receivable and accounts receivable
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of trade receivables and impairment is recognised
in the year in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based on an assessment
of the realisability of inventories. Provisions are recognised where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of inventories may not be realised. The identification of provision
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and provision for inventories in
the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment and
land use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair values less cost to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgments and estimates.

4 EBREFEFTRHAE &)

(c)

(d)

(e)

FE W OB (B B 48 2 fh T

AEBRBHEKRERATKREOREEZF
BFHEKRETRERE - —BEFEHH
ERBRAREBRTRBAERERE
B - Bl BE B MR IR I ORGSR AE
o BB RBRBEERN ARG - §8
HreRERRGAEZER  BZZE
EferERWERNKREE LR
TR E N FEANERRE

o

FERE b

AEBREBEFEZREZFHEFEED
B " BEMBANBARERTF
G2 REER] BERAE B IS HERR IS -
BB R B K R AR o TR
ZEREREGLAFTERE  MZER
Beanfhsth2zB/lRN - DRFERF
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(BRENE BERREBRIBERE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(f)

Management judgment is required in asset impairment review
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset is less than the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
whether appropriate key assumptions are applied in preparing
cash flow projections including using an appropriate discount
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management in the
impairment assessment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group's financial position and results of
operations. If there is a significant adverse change in the projected
performance and resulting future cash flow projections, it may
be necessary to charge an impairment loss to the statement of
comprehensive income.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group relies on bank valuations to determine the fair value of
financial instruments which in turn are determined using various
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models. Judgment is required in the calculation of
such valuations. Changes in the underlying assumptions could
impact profit and loss or equity.

5 Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the executive directors. CODM reviews the Group's internal reporting

in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management

has determined the operating segments based on these reports.

CODM assesses the performance of the business from a product

perspective, i.e. by headsets and headphones, and accessories and
components.

CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on

segment results before corporate expenses, other gains and losses,

finance income and costs.

Bk 25 e < F

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(REAEHAI - LBBEE)

5 Segment information (continued) 5 oER (@)
Revenue between segments is carried out in accordance with the terms DERBATIRBEETAE R — iR E 2 BR
mutually agreed by the respective parties. The revenue from external ET o INRWAARESE THARP Rz
parties is derived from numerous external customers and is measured FEZEKER B ZAREGE -

in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Headsets and Accessories and
headphones components Elimination Total
ARERR
E4ER BHLEH s 4%
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
§000 §'000 §'000 §1000 §000 §'000 §000 §'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E3) (E3)) (#E5))
Segment revenue AHURA
- External revenue LN 128,148 596,696 495,493 316,533 - - 1,223,641 913,229
- Inter-segment revenue -ABRRA - - 98,498 89,746 (98,498) (89,746) - -
Total bk 728,148 596, 696 593,991 406,279 (98,498) (89,746) = 1,223,641 913,229
Segnent result GEES 1528 456 018 us - S T HF
Corporate expenses S (4,313) (5,747)
Other gains - net b -8 1,093 74
Finance income HERA 3,048 1,481
Finance costs BEARKA (3,409) (1,067)
é _ea N
% Profit before income tax BESHAER 41,853 62,254
kg Depreciation of property, ER
E plant and equipment, Rtz g
< as restated ] 20,328 26,525 11,792 14,733 - - 32,120 41,258
Amortisation of land THERE B
use rights
- Segment amortiation, -AHEE 55
as restated 158 156 17 113 - - 275 269
- Corporate amortisation -hEEE 75 300

350 569

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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6 Property, plant and equipment 6 M¥E BERRE
Group
r5HE
Leasehold
land and  Construction- Machinery  Furniture and Motor
buildings in-progress and moulds equipment vehicles Total
HELHhRET EEIR BRRER BRREM "E BE
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
(Restated) (Restated)
(EE5) (BE5))
At 1 April 2009 120094818
Cost, as restated A EET 179,966 4,082 287,056 109,224 16,827 597,155
Accumulated depreciation, as restated Z2:H7& » &7 (41,532) - (244,431) (84,357) (14,042) (384,362)
Net book amount, as restated REFE - LF7) 138,434 4,082 42,625 24,867 2,785 212,793
Year ended 31 BZ201053A318
March 2010 LEE
Opening net ook amount, ENREEE
as previously reported mpAE2 & 127,458 4,082 42,625 24,867 2,785 201,817
Adoption of HKAS 17 RaEBe LR
(Amendment) (Note 2.1a) F1TH(BATR)
(Hiit2.1a) 10,976 - - - - 10,976
Opening net book amount, ENREFE
as restated K] 138,434 4,082 42,625 24,867 2,785 212,793
Additions R 247 15,723 11,057 4,599 3,267 34,893
Disposals e - - (2,805) (111) - (2,916)
Depreciation charge, as restated ~ FTEH Y + LES| (5,659) - (21,954) (12,044) (1,601) (41,259)
Transfer g 12,130 (17,542) - 5412 - -
Exchange differences EXEE 270 7 48 51 3 379
Closing net book amount, FREEFE -
as restated "E 145,422 2,270 28,971 2,774 4,454 203,891
At 31 March 2010 E’§\2010¢3ﬂ31 A
Cost, as restated IR BED| 197,999 2,210 286,977 117,584 19,403 624,233
Accumulated depreciation, as restated 2FHTE + L&) (52,577) - (258,006) (94,810) (14,949) (420,342)
Net book amount, as restated RHFE KET 145,422 2,210 28,971 22,774 4,454 203,891
Year ended 31 March 2011 BZ2011%3A31A
LEE
Opening net book amount, FRmEE
as previously reported MR 134,733 2,210 28,971 2,774 4,454 193,202
Adoption of HKAS 17 RnEEEHTER
(Amendment) (Note 2.1a) FE(BATAR)
(Hiz2.1a) 10,689 - - - - 10,689 .
o
Opening net book amount, FOREFE - S
as restated mE5| 145,422 2,210 28,971 22,774 4,454 203,891 §
Additions ﬁ;%\ 1,167 2,315 11,186 3,553 3,341 21,562 -
Disposals e - - (195) (240) - (435) i
Depreciation charge TERX (6,141) - (13,702) (9,738) (2,539) (32,120)
Exchange differences ERES 5,288 154 937 787 82 7,248 -
Closing net book amount FRERFE 145,736 4,739 27,197 17,136 5,338 200,146 'E’E
At 31 March 2011 R2011F3A31A ‘,#Illﬁl
Cost XA 201,401 4,739 295,254 120,341 23,147 644,882 ‘ﬁ&j
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (55,665) - (268,057) (103,205) (17,809) (444,736) =]
ant
Net book amount REFE 145,736 4,739 21,197 17,136 5,338 200,146 S
|
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B S EFHAI - ABEHE)
6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

12

Depreciation expense of HK$22,869,000 (2010: HK$31,140,000) has
been included in cost of sales and HK$9,251,000 (2010 as restated:
HK$10,118,000) in general and administrative expenses.

At 31 March 2011, the net book value of property, plant and equipment
being pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted
to approximately HK$38,424,000 (2010: HK$37,895,000).

At 31 March 2011, the Group's interests in leasehold land at net book
value of HK$10,402,000 (2010: HK$10,689,000) represent prepaid

ME- - BMERRE @)

Hr & 7 22,869,000 (2010 : 31,140,000
T ) B A AR B KA &9,251,000% JT
(20105 £ E 51 © 10,118,0005 7T ) A — #& &
THE W -

M20114F3A31B - ME- BERFZHEZ
FEFEE TER (EAXEERSEFNA
38,424,000;% 7t (2010 : 37,895,000 7T ) $R 1T
BB 2 A o

R2011E3[31H - AEERBEELT M2 RE
5 1B # 2210,402,000,% 75 (2010 : 10,689,000

operating lease payments, which are wholly located in Hong Kong and BIL) BN EEHAFIE  2BRURES
held on leases between 10 to 50 years. R LA10Z|50F 4955 B o
Investment properties REYZE
Group
rEH
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Beginning of the year F 1,600 4,440
Disposals & - (2,990)
Fair value gains (Note 23) N B (B F23) 290 150
End of the year FR 1,890 1,600

The investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2011 by LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professional qualified
valuer. Valuations were based on current prices in an active market.

At 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Group's interests in investment
properties are wholly located in Hong Kong and held on leases between
10 to 50 years.

MR2011F3 8318 - REMERBIURELRE
BAEEMMNETESMAR AT ETEM -
HEDRBENERTS ZBITERET -

R20114F K%2010F3831H » KREERKREY
EERZEHRUAETERI0ES0FEAL
A -
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B 25 e % F

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - BB E)

8 Land use rights 8 LTibfEARE

Group

rEH
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
(Restated)
(&&&E35)

Beginning of the year, F49 > MAEER

as previously reported 33,779 35,638
Adoption of HKAS 17 MBS ER BT

(Amendment) (Note 2.1(a)) (BETA) (KriE2.1(a)) (10,689) (10,976)
Beginning of the year, FY) - K&

as restated 23,090 24,662
Amortisation of prepaid BIHEN K EEETIA

operating lease payment (350) (569)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE QR (HaE31(c))

(Note 31(c)) (13,125) -
Provision for impairment loss JRl B /& B & = (1,057)
Exchange differences M H =% 520 54
End of the year FR 10,135 23,090

At 31 March 2011, the net book value of land use rights pledged as
security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$4,562,000 (2010: HK$4,478,000).

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating

MR2011F38318 » LHFEREZEEFES TK
o EAANSEEE 4 A4,562,0007 (2010 ¢

4,478,000/8 70 ) SRITAAE 2 IR & o

AEERTHERREZES RRNKERERR

lease payments and their net book value are analysed as follows: REEREFEITET
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
(Restated)
(L&)
Mainland China — held on hEAM—A10EE
leases between 10 to S50FFHLFE
50 years 10,135 23,090

/3

%45 1102/010C

B ==]
EETE

=R =2 R




o
N
~
o
o
N
+
o
o
Q
Q
o
©
=}
j=
=
<<

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 265 A M

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - LBBEE)

9 Available-for-sale financial assets

9 AHHEMBEE

Group

AEE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Beginning of the year F 7,513 2,480
Additions R 5,205 4,681
Disposals k= (5,047) -

Fair value gain transferred BERERED 2 ATERS

to equity (Note 21) (Htit21) 70 352
End of the year FR 7,741 7,513

At 31 March 2011, the Group's available-for-sale financial assets
represented investment bonds. The fair value of the investment bonds
was based on their current bid price in an active market provided by
counterparties.

10 Investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

M2011F3 8318 » AEBEZ A HEHEHEE
EEREES ZEREEHFZ2ATFEDNR
BRXSBHIREERRERMSEZEARGM

P

E °

10 RIHB AR ZREREWVRE
(a) RMBARZRE

Company
KA F
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Unlisted shares, at cost  3F_E A% 15 17 X AN (B 51 BR 139,000 139,000

The underlying value of the investment in subsidiaries is, in the
opinion of the Company’s directors, not less than the carrying
value at 31 March 2011.

(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand. HK$7,996,000 (2010: HK$8,110,000) of
the total balance is denominated in US dollars, and the remaining
balances are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

74

ARREERAE BERMBAAZ
HEABERDR20MEIABZEER
& o

(b) FEURHK B ARKIEA

FEULHT B A R FRIE T R KR . 2 B KA
REREE - FRIBHEEEFAI7,996,00075
76(2010 : 8,110,000 7T ) LA = 7T 51l BR
i8R 78 Bl LA TTHI B o



Notes to the Financial Statements
Ko 75 e 3% Bt

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - BB E)

10

Investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries

(Continued)

(c) Principal subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March

() EEMELQT

10 RIHB AR ZRE R EWRE @)

TRA2011E3A3IHZEZEHB AR :

2011:
Place of incorporation/ Particulars
Principal place of issued
Name of operation Principal activities share capital Interest held (ii)
B3N
A TELERHY TEEH BERITRAFE P iR 2 (/i)
Charter Media Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and HKS3 100%
REERAR e trading of electro-acoustic 3BT
products and accessories
REERREESEE
EmREMT
Charter Media (Dongguan) Mainland China Manufacture of electro-acoustic HK$140,000,000 100%
Company Limited (i) HE A products and accessories 140,000,000/ 7T
hE (R%) &F WEBBREMREN
BRRA ()
Dongguan Full Rich Mainland China Manufacture and trading of HK$5,000,000 100%
Precision Metal Products Bl /i precision metal parts 5,000,0007% 7T
Company Limited (7) HEREERERLGREN
SEERTLOHM
BRRA ()
Fujikon Electrical Limited  Hong Kong Investment holding HKS3 100%
ETREEERRA EiE REZK 3BT
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$3,000 100%
Limited (i7) RERAEE RERRK 3,000% T
Fujikon Industrial Hong Kong Design, manufacture, marketing Class A -
Company Limited Eh and trading of electro-acoustic ~ (non-voting) (iij) -
EITREXBRAH products and accessories HK$2,400,000 8
Rt HEEER ARR R 7 N
EEERERREH (8 R ) i) -
2,400,000/ 7 i
Class B 100%
(voting) (iii) - it
HK$600,000 H-
BB =
(BREE) (i) "
600,0007% 7C &
ot
<
5
I

75




Notes to the Financial Statements
50 75 e 3% B

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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10 Investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries 10 RMIB AT 2 RE K EWRKIE (&)

(Continued)
(c) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) (c) EEMBE LT (&)
Place of incorporation/ Particulars
Principal place of issued
Name of operation Principal activities share capital Interest held (ij)
RRLEEY
A8 TELEHH TEEH BERITRAFE P 2 (i)
Fujikon International Hong Kong Investment holding and trading HK$3 100%
Limited B% of transformers and 3BT
ETRBERBRAT power adaptors
REAZRREEZESR
RENEES
Fujikon Packing Material ~ Hong Kong Manufacture and trading of HK$10,000 51%
Company Limited 9 packaging materials 10,0008 7T
ErReENH HERBEEREDE
ARAT
Fujikon Precision Metal Hong Kong Investment holding and HK$10,000 100%
Products Limited Bk manufacture and trading 10,0005 7T
EIREFLSEM of precision metal parts
VNG REERREER
BEREO RN
Full-Sound (Dongguan) Mainland China Manufacture and trading HK$5,000,000 100%
Electrical Products A i of electro-acoustic products 5,000,000 7
Limited (i) and accessories
EE (R%) S5k HWEREREEERREY
g BRAF)
g Keen Motion Limited Hong Kong Provision of management services HK$2 100%
. ZRERAT &5 RHEBRY VAT
Q
& Landbo Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$100 100%
TRERAT B NEHE 100% 7
<
- Maxchief Enterprises Hong Kong Investment holding and trading HK$150 100%
o Limited £ of electro-acoustic products 15078 7T
E ERLXARAF and accessories
& REARRLEESR
5 EmRkEH
:'_? Zhejiang Fousine Science  Mainland China Manufacture and trading of RMB60,000,000 70%
:E & Technology Company B A PVC beads, wires and cables AR #60,000,0007C
S Limited (iv) RERBERAL
2 T ERR BB F4RES
5 W13 B R (iv)
X
¢
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10 Investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries 10 R B AT 2R E R EWFKIE (&)

(Continued)
(c) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) (c) TEMBLE (&)
Place of incorporation/ Particulars
Principal place of issued
Name of operation Principal activities share capital Interest held (ii)
HEMmitE
£ TEQERY TEER BRITRAFSE Fris 3 (ii)
Profits (Dongguan) Electric Mainland China Manufacture and trading of HK$5,384,228 100%
Products Company L 3 transformers and power adaptors 5,384,228} T
Limited (7) HEREEEERR
BE (R%) SREM EhEES
BRATR()
Score Merit Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2 100%
ERERRA N REEK VBT
Smart Success British Virgin Islands Investment holding Uss$100 100%
Management Limited ~ EBEZHE RA R 1007t
Dongguan Fortune Packing Mainland China Manufacture and trading of HK$14,000,000 51%
Products Company L A3 packaging materials 14,000,000/ 7T
Limited (}) WEREEREDH
SERBEER
BRATR()
Notes: et
(i)  Charter Media (Dongguan) Company Limited, Dongguan Full Rich (i) PR (RE)EFERAT =g ER
Precision Metal Products Company Limited, Full-Sound (Dongguan) RRSEGAERAT  EB(H=)EE
Electrical Products Limited, Profits (Dongguan) Electric Products REEREAT BE(ER=)EHRHG
Company Limited and Dong Guan Fortune Packing Products Company ERAFIER=EXBEIULER AT
Limited are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in Mainland B AR T BE A ZINE 2 E#EA
China to be operated for 25 years up to May 2019, 12 years up to ¥ ZEREDRKLELIF E201955
October 2016, 12 years up to April 2014, 12 years up to January A 12 £2016F 108 * 129 £20144F
2012 and 25 years up to November 2024, respectively. 47 125 F201251 A k25 20245
1A -
(ii)  The shares of Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited are held directly by (ii)  Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited 2 f& 7 A 3
the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly. AATHERS - EHMHBATZRG o
RS o E
B
(iii) Holders of Class A (non-voting) shares have no voting rights, are not (i) AR(EEZE)RDEEALEREZRE
entitled to dividends unless the net profit of the company exceeds TREEREE R AR B - BRIEAR A T4 A BB Bt
HK$900,000,000,000, and are not entitled to any distribution upon 900,000,000,000% 7T - H 75 & B &
winding up unless a sum of HK$900,000,000,000 has been distributed 1S E A 5K + Bk 9E900,000,000,000 it
by the Company to holders of Class B (voting) shares. BT ZREEHARR DK FBR(AER ;HEE
ZRIBROFEA - o
=]
(iv) Zhejiang Fousine Science & Technology Company Limited is a sino- (iv) MIESRBERNERAGAR—HERF CET
foreign equity joint venture established in Mainland China with no AN 2 FINEBRMDE S - g
fixed duration of operation. BEERTEEEM - el

17
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBHAIN - LUBEEETE)
11 Inventories 1" 78
Group
rEE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Raw materials R 60,153 42,092
Work-in-progress TR 51,249 30,044
Finished goods UK o 47,089 32,842
158,491 104,978

12

/8

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$1,023,690,000 (2010:
HK$730,643,000). For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group has
made a net provision of inventory obsolescence of approximately
HK$16,123,000 (2010: reversal of inventory obsolescence provision of
approximately HK$979,000).

Trade and other receivables

The Group grants credit periods to customers ranging from 7 to 120
days. At 31 March 2011, trade receivables of HK$206,117,000 (2010:
HK$121,855,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These related to
a number of independent customers for whom there was no relevant
history of default. Trade receivables that are less than three months
past due are not considered impaired except for customers which are
in unexpected difficult economic situations. At 31 March 2011 and
2010, other receivables are mainly placed with counterparties with
no history of default. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables by
past due date is as follows:

12

RAEXHEBERHEERN A TFERAL A
1,023,690,0005% 7T (2010 : 730,643,000/ 7T ) °
HEWNFEIANABLLEE  AEEZREF
B %) 516,123,00075 70 (2010 : BBl R EHHE
#7979,00078 7T ) °

FE U & R R L A BB U RO

NEBHRTFTEPIZINA Z2EEH - B
2011434318 & I & 5£206,117,0007%8 7T
(2010 : 121,855,0005% Jt ) I £ 0 HA KRl (B °
2 E I8 T I AR B HE R B A SR B
YEFEE BRUEBBHENEERNE 2T
Foh - @ E D A31(E A 2 B IR E TR AR A R
8 » 2011 K2010F3 8318 » EfEKK
BEXErEREVELRERLCHEZIRZEH T -
RE B EZERERZERROITAOT

Group Company
rEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Current =g 206,117 121,855 - -
1 to 30 days 1HZE30H 28,694 24,176 - -
31 to 60 days 31HZ60H 12,205 13,421 - -
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H 1,170 3,696 - -
Over 90 days 90H Mk 5,058 5,655 - -
253,244 168,803 - -
Less: Provision for impairment R ERER
of trade receivables RERE (5,791) (5,080) = -
Trade receivables, net BURER  FB 247,453 163,723 = -
Other receivables H it JE I FRIB 13,294 24,006 249 222
260,747 187,729 249 222
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12 Trade and other receivables (continued)

13

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

As at 31 March 2011, trade receivables from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 33.4% (2010: 24.5%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group's approach of managing credit risk is disclosed
in Note 3.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivable balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

(ex

12

B 25 e % F

pressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRZBHAN - WABBFE)
PE W & R % H At FE WK R (1)
A% S5 [ 5 0 e L M OB 2 R (B
HATEMAE -

R2011F3831H * REAARFZEKER
494 48 FE UL 5 7033.4% (2010 : 24.5%) > A&
EHEERBR 2 EERAMFINFE -

7N 5 B B L R K Lt R UK R IR 4 R PR T (B
AT 5 &% -

Group Company
r5H b

2011 2010 2011 2010

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Hong Kong dollars BT 22,450 19,090 249 222

Renminbi AR 79,853 65,760 - -

US dollars e 158,444 102,879 - -

260,747 187,729 249 222

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for AEBEKEFHRERGBEESHNT :
the Group are as follows:
Group
rEE

2011 2010

$'000 $'000

Beginning of the year F1 5,080 6,395

Provision for/(write-back of)  JR{EZE /(&E)

impairment 671 (36)
Receivables written off as AR E 2 Pl & s

uncollectible (3) (1,280)

Exchange differences ERES 43 1

End of the year FR 5,791 5,080

The impairment provision made during the year has been included in
the general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, derivative financial instruments mainly
represented foreign exchange forward contracts and the amounts are
denominated in US dollars.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts at 31 March 2011 are HK$253,143,000 (2010:
HK$434,840,000). These foreign exchange forward contracts are held
for trading and are expected to mature at various dates during the
next 15 months (2010: 12 months).

13

FAEHZREBBEFAGS2EKAER
Z—RRITH HH -

TTEE€mI A
R20114F K%2010F3 8318 © fTES€ I AEE
TIEINERIIEL  ESBEAETIIE -

R20116E3A318 » RBIINERBEO 2 A
2 /N$ %4 /5253,143,0007 7T (2010 : 434,840,000
BIL) e R EREEE ZINERHE HTEH
P& 7 A& K158 A WA RE B 2 H(2010 :
12@A) -
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14 Other financial assets at fair value through profit 14 RAFPEF ABZNHMHBEE

or loss
Group
REE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Listed equity securities and ~ ETIIREFEH K E MK}
other investments 8,087 6,436
Structured deposits EEMEFR 48,796 67,449
56,883 73,885
As at 31 March 2011, structured deposits represented capital protected MR2011E3A31H @ BBUEFEREREARE -
investments with notional amount of US$6,000,000 and with maturity %% £ %8756,000,000E T 0 TREELRE
periods from 14 to 18 months after the year end date. Management has 4= 18 A2 H - EEEABERAMSEE
the option of disposing the investment at any time in the market. REHRE o
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated EATFEFABENEMVBEENTIE
in the following currencies: B8R
Group
AEH
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
5 .
g Hong Kong dollars BT 3,044 30,991
S Us dollars ey 53,839 42,894
*é
% 56,883 73,885
S

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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(ex

Bk 25 e % Mk

pressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B SEHBIN - LB H)
15 Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits 15 RERREEEYREHRER
Group Company
rEH F YN

2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash at bank and on hand BOFERERE 40,410 93,519 359 9,831
Short-term bank deposits REHER1TTE 312,189 291,888 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 352,599 385,407 359 9,831
Fixed deposits E S - 6,810 - -
352,599 392,217 359 9,831

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was approximately
0.1% (2010: 0.2%) per annum; these deposits have an average maturity
of 4 days (2010: 17 days).

As at 31 March 2011, there were no fixed deposits. The effective interest
rate on fixed deposits as at 31 March 2010 was approximately 2% per
annum; these deposits have an average maturity of 136 days.

Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits are denominated in the
following currencies:

MERTTERERMEL AT F0.1E (2010
0.2E): ZEEFERFEHEEA A48 (2010 : 17
H) -

R2011FE38318 ' AEBEITEEFHER - B
2010F3A31H » EHEREBANRNAEF
2B ZEERFHEEHEA136H ©

ReRReEEBYREPFRIATIEET]
BE :

Group Company
rEH NYNE

2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Hong Kong dollars BT 22,574 37,648 359 9,813
Renminbi AR 106,191 74,598 - -
US dollars ETT 223,227 275,069 - -
Other currencies Hap g 607 4,902 = -
352,599 392,217 359 9,813

At 31 March 2011, approximately HK$68,548,000 (2010: HK$74,598,000)
of the Group's cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits placed
with banks in Mainland China were denominated in Renminbi, which
is not a freely convertible currency in the international market and the
repatriation of which is subject to foreign exchange control regulations
of Mainland China.

R201143 8318 + £ [E 468,548,000/ 7T
(2010 : 74,598,000/ JT ) 77 B 7R 1 B (A 4 3R
TZRERBESEEMUARTERFREUA
REINE MAREWLIEBRBE TS BB LB
2 &k B E) S G B A INE B HIE AR FT
PR 1] ©
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(BREEHAI - BB E)

16 Trade and other payables 16 BNERKHAMENRE
As at 31 March 2011, the ageing analysis of trade payables by past R201143 8318 ' IREHBEAEZENER
due date is as follows: ZHERBEDTAT
Group Company
r&H b N
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Current & H 97,446 73,177 - -
1 to 30 days 1HZ=30H 21,381 16,031 - -
31 to 60 days 31HE60H 8,093 3,173 - -
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H 2,281 2,295 - -
Over 90 days 90H LA k£ 5,060 2,110 - -
Trade payables FERTERK 134,261 96,786 - -
Accruals and other payables  JEFtER R H b ENFUA 80,164 80,872 3,531 6,501
214,425 177,658 3,531 6,501
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables RNEE 2 N ER KR HMERNRIEZ REE
approximate their fair values. BHNFEESE ©
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other payables balances RNE B 2 BN BRI H e RRIB A 8R 2 BR
are denominated in the following currencies: EEA TSR
§ Group Company
° TEE RATF
S 2011 2010 2011 2010
& $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- Hong Kong dollars BT 42,763 42,428 3,531 6,501
Renminbi AR 155,505 122,570 - -
US dollars ETT 16,082 9,754 - -
Other currencies Hith & ¥ 75 2,906 - -
214,425 177,658 3,531 6,501

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bank borrowings

At 31 March 2011, the bank borrowings are wholly secured by certain
of the Group's property, plant and equipment (Note 6) and land use
rights (Note 8).

Bank borrowings bear interest rate at approximately 5.5% (2010:
5.3%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their fair
values. The bank borrowings are denominated in Renminbi and repayable
within one year.

Deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority.

The movements in the deferred income tax liabilities are as follows:

Bk 25 e % Mk

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

17

18

(BREAEHAI - BB E)

MITEE

R2011F38318 ' RITEEEZHBHASEE
ETWE BB REZE(HE6) & A
(MI7E8) BRI o

RITEEBRY AFES5E (2010 : 5.3F) °

RITEECREEREAFEES -
EUAARBIIM AR —FAREE -

RITIE

EEFRESHER

REFMGHABABELANEREZRREER
%*16.5%(2010 : 16.5% )5t &

EEMSHREERABEERTHBAEERR
TIHIBAEA AR 8 H AT EHEH
FMBEEMEGHER —HRERBEREE - T/
EiEH -

BRREFMSHABEZEFMT

Group
A%
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
At 1 April R4B1H 1,132 1,892
Deferred income tax Rize&E2EKERPEN
credited to consolidated BEFTSR (KiE26)
statement of comprehensive
income (Note 26) (519) (760)
At 31 March M3A31H 613 1,132
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(BREEHAI - BB E)

18 EEMEHEME )
F RUEIE TS B A (R (52 A — MBULE 2 & 8

18 Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)

The movements in deferred income tax liabilities (prior to offsetting

of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year are A 2 BB T ¢
as follows:
Accelerated
tax Fair value
depreciation gains Others Total
MERENRE NYEERE Hty EoHY
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
§'000 §000 $'000 §000 $'000 §000 §'000 §000
At 1 April M4A1E 1,071 1,664 33 200 28 28 1,132 1,892
(Credited)/charged MEA2ARERT
to consolidated (B#)/ %8
statement of
comprehensive income (567) (593) 48 (167) - - (519) (760)
At 31 March "3A318 504 1,07 81 33 28 28 613 1,132
19 Share capital 19 B
2011 2010
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
KRHEE REE K7 EE SREE
'000F A% $'000 '000F % $'000
§ Authorised: JERE
S — ordinary shares of —BREE.104E T
% HK$0.10 each 2 EBIR 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
T Issued and fully paid: EBEITRER
£ — ordinary shares of —FREE0.10E T
HK$0.10 each 2 EBR
Beginning of the year F9) 406,389 40,639 399,189 39,919
Exercise of share FRITHEBIRE
options during the year 3,750 375 7,200 720
End of the year Fx 410,139 41,014 406,389 40,639

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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20 Share options

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) under
which it could grant options to employees of the Group (including
executive directors of the Company) to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a maximum of 10% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company. The subscription price was to be
determined by the Company’s board of directors, and would not be
less than the higher of the nominal value of the shares and 80% of the
average of the closing price of the shares quoted on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the options.

Following the amendment of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange, during the year ended 31 March 2003, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Existing Scheme”)
to replace the Old Scheme. However, all options granted prior to the
adoption of the Existing Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the Old Scheme. Under the Existing
Scheme, the Company may grant options to any eligible employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive director), any
non-executive director, any shareholder, any supplier and any customer
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest, and any other party
having contributed to the development of the Group to subscribe for
shares in the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal
value of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The Subscription price will be determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

Bk 25 e % Mk

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEHAI - BB E)

20 EEARRE

RARRABBETE([EE]) - Bt
ARARARAKBEREB(EEARBNTE
B)REBREABBARAMRD - EHE T
BRAEARFEHBITRAEEID - RBE
MARBERGER  UTEERKROHZE
EREZERHEREAHIAEAXZIEESR
B ARXZMARNA (B F
BRTHEZ80%(AREZBEERE) -

BRATES EMAREE R AARREE
2003FF3 A3 B IEFERMERETEI([RE
STEI DB ERE - EABE BB AR
L2 MEREIREE S 2GR EET
o RIJBRATE - ARAIATRARFE
FERB AR AEERKE R AFEREZ
AREIZEMEERES (2B 21T
AFHITESE) EMERNTES - FAKRE
FREEFERENRTE  REARSEER
EHEBZ M EMA LR BRENRE
KRR,  HEATERBRHO T SHBARAR A
T2 B EITIRAEEZ230% °

REEHARAEZTEET LS ERMN
TRBEZERSE :

(a) BORBHUEBEBRIAETHARERANT
) 2 W g

(b) BOREBEEZHNEANALERS A EE

XIS ABERMIZFHETE: Rk

(0 MBHmEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
$0F 5 e 3% B

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - BB E)

20 Share options (continued) 20 B RE (m)
Movements of share options during the year ended 31 March 2011 HZE201MF3ANBIEFEZ2EREZ S W
were: T
Lapsed/
Subscription Beginning Granted Exercised cancelled
price of the during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period per share year the year the year the year the year
R
REBH TERE SRABRE £ ERgd ERAE AR/ L3S
HKS 000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
BT T T T T Tk
0ld Scheme Bt
02/05/2000 02/05/2000 - 01/05/2010 1.287 3,600 - (3,600) - -
02/05/2001 - 0110572010 1287 (Note ) (A1) 75 - (50) (25) -
3,675 - (3,650) (25) -
Existing Scheme ~ BAEFE
03/05/2004 03/05/2005 - 02/05/2014 1.00 (Note i) (H22i) 50 - (50) - -
03/05/2006 - 02/05/2014 1.00 (Note ii) (Hi#tii) 50 - (50) - -
100 - (100) - -
2210512007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 1.98 (Note i) (H1iHi) 11,500 - - - 11,500
Notes: MaE
()  The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date () ZEBREARKLDBBHESZ —FHEBH
of grant. 7 -
(i)  The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date (i) ZEBWRERRKE B BEZMFRED
of grant. 71 °
(iii) For the year ended 31 March 2011, the weighted average closing price (i) BE201MF3ANBIEFE - RORBEEBER
of the shares immediately before the dates on which the options were HETTEEE B AT Z KT ER1.605 T o
exercised was HK$1.60.
§ (iv) The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock (iv) ARFRONBEERER DS B ATERR
S Exchange's daily quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which FTBEBERIIE 2 KRHENT
é the options were granted were as follows:
é Closing price per share immediately
& before the date of grant (HK$)
e Date of grant FHAH ZERHERAIZERUTE (Bx)
<
2 May 2000 20009F5H2H 1.72
3 May 2004 2004F5H3H 0.89
22 May 2007 20074F5H22H 1.95
(v) At 31 March 2011, outstanding options of 11,500,000 were exercisable. (v) 7201143 H31H - 11,500,0004% ~ B& A& #& =]
FATE -

(vi) Options exercised during the year were issued at the corresponding

subscription price. (vi) FABTERZBERESRNYERBEET -

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

S 2 e o B i

(BRBBEHBI - UBEHE)

21 Other reserves 21 HihfEE
Group
r5E
Property Share
Share revaluation Capital ~ Statutory Investment option  Exchange
premium reserve  reserves (a) reserves (b) reserves reserves reserves Total
RORE NXERRE E4REE AEREO)  RERE BRERE  EXRE g
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
At 1 April 2009 W200954A1A 85,760 2,108 30,570 6,094 116 6,923 45,805 177,376
Currency translation ERZER
differences - - - - - - 832 832
Fair value gains on e BAE
available-for-sale PNTEL
financial assets - - - - 35 - - 3
Employee share [REERETE
option scheme:
- Value of employee -BER%EE
services - - - - - (207) - (207)
- Proceeds from shares -fIRERER
issued upon exercise Bk HETE
of share options 8,547 - - - - - - 8,547
Release of property HERBMERFT
revaluation reserve R omEEthEE
upon disposal of
investment properties - (1,067) - - - - - (1,067)
Appropriation of EERBDR
statutory reserves - - - 07 - - - 01
At 31 March 2010 R201063A318
Currency translation ERER
differences
Fair value gains on AfLERBEE
available-for-sale LR EY SR
financial assets
Employee share [EEERENE
option scheme:
- Bxercise of -fikERE
share options
- Proceeds from T
shares issued upon Rip 2GR
exercise of share options
Release of reserves HEMBRFR
upon disposal i A1
of subsidiaries
Release of reserve ZHE-MBLAAR
upon dissolution Figh 2k
of a subsidiary
Release of investment HETHRILEH B
reserves upon disposal BERMRR
of available-for-sales LBRERE
financial assets
At 31 March 2011 R2011E38318
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - BB E)

21 Other reserves (Continued) 21 HitbhfRE®m)
Company
AT
Share
Share Contributed option
premium surplus (c) reserves Total
R EE BRHEKRGC) BREGRHE B
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 April 2009 72009%F4H1H 85,760 138,800 6,923 231,483
Employee share option scheme: & B8R ETE -
- Value of employee services —EERBZEE - - (207) (207)
— Proceeds from shares — (TR BRI I B 1T
issued upon exercise f& 7 2 FT 1S 3018
of share options 8,547 - - 8,547
At 31 March 2010 7201053 H31H 94,307 138,800 6,716 239,823
Employee share option scheme: {E B ETE :
— Exercise of share options — 1T A 30 = (30) =
— Proceeds from shares — 1T AR T 31T
issued upon exercise HxTﬁZﬁﬁ?—gﬁfﬂ
of share options 4,422 - - 4,422
At 31 March 2011 M2011%§3A31H 98,759 138,800 6,686 244,245
Notes: MiaE
(a) Capital reserves represent the difference between the nominal value of (a) BAXAREBEEARAMBTEER 2EEHER
= the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount #520004F 3 A 78 5 [ 2 40 3 1T 3R AR i Uk BB 2 B
S of the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through BRARIRAERMDBBAEAM Z5 » URk—
% an exchange of shares pursuant to the Group's reorganisation in March B AR E RN R R IRA Z X E FHE R
” 2000 and certain amounts of statutory reserves and retained earnings of RBEMNzETEE - REF - —HRH
% a subsidiary capitalised as paid-up capital. In prior year, certain statutory AZWBRARZETEAERERRSB RN
% reserves and retained earnings were capitalised as paid up capital of a BEERERHRKA -
<§( subsidiary in Mainland China.
T (b)  Statutory reserves represent general reserve fund required to be set up (b) EEREEA *E}T‘:EP BlARRBAEE R E
:E pursuant to the laws of China for the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland Nz MBARR I —REHEES - — &K
= China. The general reserve fund can only be used to make up for losses 1aﬁ1ﬁ%f£1%—fﬁﬁ1’lf WE AR NG E AR
% incurred, increase registered capital or use for collective welfare of SAEEE 2SR -
o employees.
£
T (c)  Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value () EBERHEBREARAMETETERZEESER
"E of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value 1820004 3 A 7N & [ 5 4 3 17 4R AR i U B 2 B
-E of a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant to the BARIEEFEZER
E Group's reorganisation in March 2000.
2
&
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(BREAEHAI - BB E)

22 Revenue 22 A
The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, marketing AEBFEXEBRRT  HiE HEREES
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other electronic EBREm BEHERHEMEFEMRFEEY
products and property holding. Revenues recognised during the year ¥ o FABRZWALT :

are as follows:

2011 2010
$'000 $'000

Sales of merchandise BmiHE 1,206,460 903,293

Rental income HEWA 161 158

Management fees I 134 140

Handling income BREKA 16,886 9,638

1,223,641 913,229

23 Other gains — net 23 Hitlz — F 8
2011 2010
$'000 $'000

Fair value gains/(losses) TESMTARFERZ (FHE)
on derivative financial
instruments 181 (705)

Fair value gains on other LR E AR AEAM
financial assets at fair MBEE N T EREZ
value through profit or loss 1,722 2,259

Fair value gains on KREWME 2 AT ERSE
investment properties 290 150

Net gains on disposal HERMHREEMBEE 2 W FH
of available-for-sale
financial assets 344 -

Net gains on disposal of HERATEF ABERN
other financial assets Hith W & E 2 W #58
at fair value through
profit or loss 199 358

Net losses on disposal REREYMEZ BEFE
of investment properties - (117)

Net losses on disposal HEME - BEIEEH2EREE S
of property, plant N
and equipment (377) (2,609) S

Net foreign exchange PE X (&), W F _;;
(losses)/gains (2,984) 1,795 o

Net gains on disposal LEM B AR 2w FEE (M E31(c))
of subsidiaries (Note 31 (c)) 1,841 - it

Net losses on dissolution FRAH — BB AR 2 18 F 5 H-
of a subsidiary (123) - o

Provision for impairment T AR EEERE /%HEI
loss on land use rights - (1,057) o

=
at
1,093 74 i
5
al
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - BB E)

24 Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after charging and crediting the following:

24 BERRF

RN 2R RET A TIIEIE

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
(Restated)
(©&E5)
Auditor's remuneration % BUAD BN & 1,156 1,156
Amortisation of land use rights = 3 {3 FF 4 2  $% 350 569
Cost of inventories FERAR 1,023,690 730,643
Depreciation of property, M- BEREEITE
plant and equipment 32,120 41,258
Government grants BT 478 B (789) (1,691)
Operating lease rental MEZKEHEHNES
of premises 5,972 4,805
Provision for/(write-back of)  FEUWE FURER S, (=1 #)
impairment of trade
receivables 671 (36)
Staff costs (including BETER(BEESEME) (HE30)
directors’ emoluments)
(Note 30) 276,826 200,174
25 Finance income and costs 25 MEWARHKAE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Interest income from RENTZFERA
— available-for-sale - AL ENBEE
financial assets 430 253
— bank deposits —RITTFER 2,532 1,147
— financial assets at fair —BATFEFABENPKEE
value through profit or loss 86 81
Finance income BB YA — R B A
— interest income 3,048 1,481
Finance costs & AR AN (3,409) (1,067)
Net finance (costs)/income BME(KA) WA FE (361) 414
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26 Income tax expenses

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March
2016.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for the year. The Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China
are subject to the China Corporate Income Tax (“CIT").

Two subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China are under the New and
High Technology Enterprises status and were entitled to preferential CIT
rate of 15%. The New and High Technology Enterprise status for one of
these subsidiaries has expired on 31 December 2010 and the subsidiary
is in the process of applying for the renewal of this status.

One subsidiary of the Group operating in Mainland China qualifies for
the grandfathering provisions and is eligible for certain tax exemptions
and concessions during the year. Accordingly, the CIT for such subsidiary
has been provided for after taking into account of these tax exemptions
and concessions. For other subsidiaries in Mainland China, provision
of CIT were calculated based on the statutory tax rate of 25% (2010:
25%) on the assessable income of each of the Group’s subsidiaries.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

Bk 25 e % Mk

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEHAI - BB E)

26 FRIEH <

KRR RHBEREME - HZE2016F3H4
y=1a)

EANECHBEGCRBEANESELTR
B &8 2 &t B &R & F BA16.5% (2010 :
16.5%) T R &E - AEBRAFBE A 2 B
AABETFRECEMESR(TFELERS
1) o

AEBRBURPEAMZMBEARFTAES
FRECEER UEZEFPBEHCEMSM
15% 2 BEHE - HF—HWB AR ZSH
R AEERDR2010F12831B 2 H - m
ZHBARIIERBFEBELEBER °

AEE—FEWNB RN R A EERNF
A BEEBEXTEERZTAETREEH
SREHE Al ZMEBRAR ZF B ER
SHREAREBHRERENEREEE - =
RAAER MM EBAT - FESERSE
RBENREAEBRWNBRARS A ZERM
WA HOEE B E25% (2010 : 25%) 5t E o

~

Rir e 2mE SR AR RIES R

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Current income tax EHIPTIET

— Hong Kong profits tax —BBFEH 6,259 7.451

— China corporate — B REMEH
income tax 1,011 613

— Over-provision —TFEBRFIRE
in prior years (255) (44)
7,015 8,020
— Deferred income tax —RIEMER (563) (433)

— Under/(over)-provision —HFEELRCBE) B E

in prior years 44 (327)
______________________ 519y . (760)
6,496 7,260
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - BB E)

26 Income tax expenses (Continued) 26 FRBH X W (@)
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the AREBEEBRTAE MR 2 TSR B AR
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the AFBRR 2B EAE 2 EmeE =5l
home country of the Company as follows: LU
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Profit before income tax W P15 B8 A g A 41,853 62,254
Calculated at a taxation B E16.5%(2010%F : 16.5% )T &
rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) 6,906 10,272
Effect of different taxation A AR R 2 8
rates in Mainland China 268 (481)
Income not subject to taxation  HEHF 2 W A (1,447) (2,410)
Expenses not deductible TRAIgRAR T M 0Bk 2 2
for taxation purpose 3,316 1,514
Over-provision in prior years 4 & 1B T & (211) (371)
Others H A (2,336) (1,264)
Income tax expenses Frigfis h 6,496 7,260

27 Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 27 AAGREFE AEEER

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in #950,550,0007% 7£.(2010 : 52,399,000/ 7T ) 2
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately KRARIREREE ARBMGRNE ST ARR G
HK$50,550,000 (2010: HK$52,399,000). BWmEK °

o
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(BREAEHAI - BB E)

28 Dividends 28 BRE
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Interim dividend of HK3.0 P EAAR B IR E B AR3.05 1L
cents (2010: HK3.0 cents) (2010 : 3.05%4L)
per ordinary share 12,304 11,976
Proposed final dividend AR SR T B ARS.08 L
of HK5.0 cents (2010 = 5.0/ ()
(2010: HK5.0 cents)
per ordinary share 20,507 20,502
Special interim dividend Rl HA R BB R AR 1.0
of HK1.0 cent (2010 : 1.0581L)
(2010: HK1.0 cent)
per ordinary share 4,101 3,992
Proposed special final EESRIRREEREBRTENL
dividend of nil (2010 = 3.0/E (L)
(2010: HK3.0 cents)
per ordinary share - 12,301
36,912 48,771
At a meeting held on 23 June 2011, the directors proposed a final R20MNF6HBARTTzE8Z% L ESEH
dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share amounting to a total of HK$ KA REAR S FREBRS.0EMN - REaH
20,507,000. The amount is based on approximately 410,139,000 shares 20,507,000/ JT ° 7% & 88 J7 & 1201146 H23
in issue as at 23 June 2011. The proposed dividend is not reflected as H 49410,139,000/% B 21T DT & - FIRAR S
a dividend payable in these consolidated financial statements. PEEZEFREUHHRERPIMEERMNKRE -
29 Earnings per share 29 BREF
Basic BN
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable BIRERBADAGBARARAREREAZ
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ERBRAFEFRNE BT L BR 2 MEFIHIEH
ordinary shares in issue during the year. FTE o
2011 2010
S
Profit attributable to equity BwEBAQRIRERSE A ZET §
holders of the Company (F#&T) =
(HK$'000) 30,008 51,142 g
Weighted average number BETEBR 2 NETHE i}
of ordinary shares (F1&) IEJru}
in issue (in thousands) 410,013 399,258 i
%
. i
Basic earnings per share FRRERZF (BL) ;%
(HK cents) 7.3 12.8 ot
m
5
1l
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(BREEHAI - BB E)

29 Earnings per share (Continued) 29 BRERN (&)

Diluted &5

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted BREERNDBRBRMEEEHEL A
average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of A% B B A i B8 1T 2 AR A T B N T &
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one category of AE-ARAERBEEHREERK - AE
dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. For the share options, f&HE - BLEEAREM 5 - DIRB R ARTEER
a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could R REEsESBEREBEE ATRATE
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual WiE 2RO B (ARDBRG FAGFEME
market price of the Company's shares) based on the monetary value EE)MELE - EXFHEZRMNEE HERE
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The BEREETFERETZROHDBERSE °

number of shares calculated as above is compared with the number
of shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the
share options.

2011 2010
Profit attributable to equity  BREBARATREREAZ BN (FAET)
holders of the Company
(HK$'000) 30,008 51,142
Weighted average number BEaETEBR 2 METHE(TR)
of ordinary shares
in issue (in thousands) 410,013 399,258
Adjustment for potential MEARITERBRE 2 BEEHE
dilutive effect in HEEH 2 HE(TR)
respect of outstanding
share options
(in thousands) 31 1,959
5
g Weighted average AEEREERT
- number of ordinary TR R E (TR
% shares for diluted
= earnings per share
§ (in thousands) 410,044 401,217
Diluted earnings TREE RN B
per share (HK cents) 7.3 12.7

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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(BREAEHAI - BB E)

30 Employee benefit expense (including directors’ 30 EEBANXH(BEEEH L)

emoluments)
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Wages and salaries ITEERF® 264,239 188,246
Other staff benefits HMETRF 10,145 8,209
Pension costs — defined RR& I H — FraftRErEl
contribution plans (K1:#33)
(Note 33) 2,442 3,926
Value of employee EEBKREZEE
share options - (207)
276,826 200,174
(a) Directors and senior management’s emoluments (a) EZEREAREEEMS
Pension
costs
Discretionary  and share
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses options Total
BAREXH
ESpHE we ¢ RBEREL RERE am
$'000 $'000 §000 $'000 $'000
For the year ended HEWNMEIANALEE
31 March 2011
Executive Directors HITEE
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny BEE 200 1,499 488 9 2,196
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon TRmA 200 1,460 488 9 2,157
Chow Man Yan, Michael BXE 200 1,460 488 2 2,169
Yuen Chi King, Wyman BT 150 906 252 2 1,329
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben BOR 150 906 252 21 1,329 S
Chow Lai Fung AEE 150 884 252 21 1,307 g
o
Independent Non-Executive BUEHTES g
Directors
Ho}
Chang Chu Cheng B 200 - - - w L
Che Wai Hang, Allen BEE 200 - - - 200 %ﬁ
Lee Yiu Pun TR 200 - - = 200 o
=
at
i
5
|
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(BREEHAI - LBBEE)

30 Employee benefit expense (including directors’ 30 EEBAXH(EBEEETHS) @)
emoluments) (cContinued)

(a) Directors and senior management’'s emoluments (a) EERSREEEMNE (&)
(Continued)
Pension
costs
Discretionary and share
Name of Directors Fees Salary  bonuses options Total
BREXH
ExEpng ne Fe MEBTA RERE nEg
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
For the year ended BZ2010F3831LEE

31 March 2010

Executive Directors HITEF

Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny Sk 200 1,431 1,124 18 2773
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon Dk 200 1,394 1,124 9 2,727
Chow Man Yan, Michael BAxi 200 1,394 1,124 21 2,739
Yuen Chi King, Wyman Dt 150 865 579 21 1,615
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben BLR 150 865 579 21 1,615
Chow Lai Fung EAER 150 844 579 21 1,594

Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES

Directors

Chang Chu Cheng R 200 - - - 200

Che Wai Hang, Allen EEEfE 200 - - - 200
= Lee Yiu Pun = 200 - - . 200
8
o
5
5 (b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEESHFAL
(0]
% The five individuals are directors whose emoluments were the FAREEREEEEFABALTR
= highest in the Group for the year and last year whose emoluments EE KECZHEEREXRZNZHT

are reflected in the analysis presented above. A o

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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31 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 31 FEBEEREXRME

flows
(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash (used (a) AEEBANELETEH(FA) AT
in)/generated from operations: BRrESZHE:
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
(Restated)
(&E7))
Profit for the year RNEF 5 F 35,357 54,994
Adjustments for: AT SEEEYFE
- Amortisation of — T AR B
land use rights 350 569
— Depreciation of property, —ME BWEERRBZITE
plant and equipment 32,120 41,258
— Finance costs —BE KA 3,409 1,067
— Finance income —BEWA (3,048) (1,481)
— Income tax expenses — TS 6,496 7,260
— Fair value (gains)/losses —TEEMITARNFE
on derivative financial (Yez) /18

instruments ) \ B (181) 705

— Fair value gains on other —RBRAFEF ABmHEAD
financial assets at fair BB EE N T ENRS

value through
profit or loss . \ 9 (1,722) (2,259)

— Fair value gains on —REMEQFTER
investment properties (290) (150)
— Net gains on disposal —HEATHEENBKEE
of available-for-sale W FE
financial assets (344) -
— Net gains on disposal —HERATFEF ABER
of other financial BB ERE 2 W F58
assets at fair value
through profit or loss (199) (358)
— Net losses on disposal -~ HEREMEZEEFE
of investment properties - 117
— Net losses on disposal —HEWXE  HWEREE
of property, plant 2 BiEEE
and equipment 377 2,609
— Net gains on disposal —HEWMB ARz WaFRE
of subsidiaries (1,841) -
— Net losses on dissolution —REE B RRZEEFE
of a subsidiary 123 -
— Provision for impairment — T AR EEEREE
loss on land use rights - 1,057
— Provision for/(write-back of)  —REREREE, (E#)
impairment of inventory
obsolescence 16,123 (979) 5
— Value of employee —EEBREZEE S
share options = (207) S
86,730 104,200 4
Changes in working capital: EEAREE
— Inventories -FE (69,636) 377
— Trade receivables —EER (83,730) 1,943 Eﬂ
— Other receivables — H {th JE K RIR 10,710 (6,936) ot
— Trade payables —EREK 37,475 36,683 !
- Accruals and —FEFH B R R H i R FRIE e
other payables (348) (17,226) L
— Deferred income —IEEH A 78 1,986 §
Cash (used in)/generated KEES (R, FEz8E ’S
from operations (18,721) 121,029 |
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(REAEHAI - LBBEE)

31 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 31 RERERERM T (#)

(Continued)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year: (b) FRMESBH D :
Share capital and
share premium Bank loans
B AR B 13 R E RITEX
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 April ®W4B81H 134,946 125,679 26,107 16,988
Issue of shares upon EAT AR i TR 19
exercise of share
options 4,797 9,267 - -
Employee share EEERENE
option scheme:
— Exercise of — 1T HE AR
share options 30 - - -
New bank loans FILIRITE X - - 25,463 26,077
Repayment of BERITER
bank loans - - (11,574) (17,007)
Exchange differences fEHERE - - 1,473 49
At 31 March M3A31H 139,773 134,946 41,469 26,107
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries: (c) HEMBLR :
On 19 July 2010, the Group disposed the entire share capital 5’32010¢7ﬁ195 rEBEHEELS
of Fujikon Technology Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary ﬂﬁiﬁﬁi HE2EMBARRES
of REE T EENEABMRAF and a loan made by the ‘ﬁ?%?iﬁﬁﬁ&jziﬁﬂﬁ$&$
Group to Fullkon Technology Limited to Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, glf\’\% TEREERARZER
Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, TARBIEEHEMALE - JRM A%
Michael, directors of the Company and Yield Best International £ AX 1Z§‘E$&%Milf5’ HERRD
Investment Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong al(— Fﬁﬁﬁ/\\\glﬁnfﬂ:ﬁﬁkilm R=REF
_ which is wholly-owned by these three directors, at a total 2EEANRAA) - BRKER14,756,000
5 consideration of HK$14,756,000 (Note 35(c)). The details of 78 7T (B éi35(c)) c L EZHEM
S disposal were as follows: T 3
<
o
& $'000
£ Net assets disposed of: EHECEESE
Land use rights = 3 B R A 13,125
= Cash and cash equivalents fﬁﬁ&ﬁ@%fg% 1,802
o Other payables E A FE - 3R (329)
E Loan payable to the Group VHZ!SEIZ“M (18,281)
i Loan receivable from Fujikon EBWE LEEHEZER AR
= Technology Limited Z B 18,281
5 s
e 14,598
= Exchange gain realised BEEIR 2 EH W (1,688)
5 Capital reserve released Ryl N = 5
3
£ 12,915
g Gains on disposal & W E 1,841
o S b
& Total consideration WA 14,756
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31 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows
(Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries: (Continued)

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

Bk 25 e < F

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEHAI - BB E)

31 REBREREXRKWT (@)

() HEWBAR : (&)
HEMBRRZRERASEEMRA

the disposal of the subsidiaries is as follows: RN
$'000
Cash consideration received EUWIRENE 14,756
Cash and cash equivalents EHERELRREEFED
disposed (1,802)
Net inflow of cash ReRBESFEMRAFE
and cash equivalents 12,954
32 Commitments 32 &
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
The Group had the following authorised and contracted capital AEBZEREREFTNE AAED
commitments: T 3
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Acquisition of machinery B B ## & 2351
and equipment 869 1,231

(b) Commitments under operating leases

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under
various non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

(b) HEHREERE

AEBREZEIAER 2 KEHERN
ARENREHESBREMNT

2011 2010
$'000 $000
Not later than one year B 14F 4,962 2,970
Later than one year BiE1FETEBIESF
and not later than
five years 5,935 2,575
10,897 5,545
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Notes to the Financial Statements
50 5 e 3 B

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REAEHAI - LBBEE)
33 Pension obligations

34

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. The assets of
the fund are held separately from those of the Group and are managed
by independent professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme,
each of the Group and its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’'s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month
and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China. The employees contribute up to 22% of their basic
salaries, while the Group contributes to retirement plans approximately
at 11% to 13% of the basic salaries of its employees in Mainland
China, and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

Financial guarantee

At 31 March 2011, the Company had provided guarantees in respect
of banking facilities of its subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$196,982,000 (2010: HK$155,700,000). The facilities utilised by
the subsidiaries at 31 March 2011 amounted to HK$41,469,000 (2010:
HK$26,107,000).
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RAKEEE

AEBELZHEFTERELEA —BBIUETA
FEZERAETRFELAEHE([RES
TE])  cEEe v EEHASEEMEED A
HE THBUEEESCEETE - RE®
BoitsE  ~AEEREEEHANRGER
BEEAPIMERZEZEBEFHF S 25%F AMatE
EHER - BREREEHKZ EREI AT A
1,000 7t © 75 A] B REREIMEER ©

REFBEAMIELEZRRTE  ARERE
TREAMESRBERE RN EE
B REAREERAFSRZ22%F H#
Ko MASBERAERERAKFTEMELERER
WEEBEAF SN DE13% 2 H - MEH
BAE B BRR RS X SR RE A BI B A E
HAEMAE - RINMEB 2B RKE B
Bl R & B 2 R INET &I

o

Bt B R

R2011F3831H * AR A BEHB QA IR
TREEELER - © 84 /5196,982,0007%8 7T
(2010 : 155,700,000/ Jt.) = K& 2 & 72011
F3A3MHE 8 A 2 @ & 541,469,000/ 7T
(2010 : 26,107,000 7T ) ©
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEHAI - BB E)

35 Related party transactions 3 MEAELRS
The ultimate parent of the Group is Acoustic Touch Limited (incorporated Acoustic Touch Limited (7 % & 5z 22 #f & 7 i}
in the British Virgin Islands). BRAL) BASE 2 &R AT] o
(a) The following significant transactions were carried out with related (a) AEEEHBEALTZERRSET ¢
parties:
Name of related party/nature of transaction 2011 2010
BMEALZER XZHE $'000 $'000

The Bright Printing Press 3% BRI =0 E 75 4K an R B BR 2 &1 (7)
and Paper Products
Limited (i)
- Purchases of —MASEEEER
merchandise from
the Group 156 971
- Sales of merchandise — AN EHE SR
to the Group 608 2,308

First Success Technology  tEE=EHZ AR A (i)

Limited (ii)
— Rental expense - AEER ERNzES
paid/payable
by the Group 791 791
- Management fees —B/ERAEREZEEER
paid/payable
to the Group 120 120
Notes B E
(i)  The Bright Printing Press and Paper Products Limited is 3% owned (i)  eRAMEDRS AL RS BR R ) B JF A
by an unrelated party. The remaining 97% is beneficially owned by ALTHEB3%AME - HERITNIRER AR
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow RIZESGEHELE RmAEEREAX
Man Yan, Michael, directors of the Company. ChRAEE=SES
=
(i) First Success Technology Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung (i) HERREBRAFBARDVERSESE I
Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Sk RMALTERRAXCEEERR =
Michael, directors of the Company. g g
In the opinion of the Company's directors, the above related party K RIESRAR  LABEALRST) m
transactions were conducted in the usual course of business of RAEE —REBBIETET  LIRE gjrul
the Group and in accordance with terms mutually agreed by the T3 W TE ZARTAET © )
respective parties. i’é
55
)
m
]
al
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRA BB -

At E)

35 Related party transactions (Continued)

102

(b) Key management compensation

(c)

Key management personnel are the Company’s executive directors.
Details of compensation of key management personnel are disclosed
in Note 30 to the financial statements.

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 19 July 2010, the Group disposed the entire share capital of
Fujikon Technology Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary of
HxEteE&E AR AH and a loan made by the Group to
Fujikon Technology Limited to Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr.
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, directors
of the Company and Yield Best International Investment Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong which is wholly-owned by
these three directors, at a total consideration of HK$14,756,000
(Note 31(c)). The Group has recognised gains on disposal of
subsidiaries of HK$1,841,000 in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

35 BEATRS (@)

(b) TEEBEASH M

(c)

TEEBEABRARARNTES - &
EIEABZHE RSB HARME30 -

HENE 2R

R2010F78198 - AEBHE=EL =
MEERAREREZ2ENBARRES
TEEBREERARZETIRARE
BERTeEtatiBBRARZER T
RARESGERELEE RMABELEE -
BAXCRERBERBIRERRAR(—
MRESEMK LI HZ=—REEEE
BERRAT)  BREAE14,756,0007
TL(KIEE31(c)) - AEEEREZEE2EK
ok P RE R & BT B A AUk a5 1,841,000
BIT e
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